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A7E&HR Corporate Information
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FE#RE Chairman’s Statement

e o)

Business Review

BE_Z—ZHF=ZA=1+—HBLEE"

REBE 2 BRFT 5% AT E 18 537,683,956
BT (ZCEZENF BRAESHHARIA
35,890,949 7T) © B X F T #k205% °
B R BEAL B 18 546,697,885 T (ZEZ
hE  BRREMZEF H23,165,25187T) »
HEFRMBLERT#%302% THRZEE
RHEA:

1. RARREBFENTEMSHEHEE
£A T [£180,052,0267%8 T ;

2. AREESFERRELEE  WEIY
¥ BEKRREHERE21,005,900
Bt RETIREEE F9,694,0588 7T |

3. EXREERMNIAZHHERZ
hE=A Eﬁ&ﬁ?ﬁ%mﬁ%ﬂ%mé , %I
BB R #6538 1n28,306,882i%
TR

4, HELEHEREETIAREMIIEZE
FRE B EhE R AN T N4,929,28578 IT ©

HRSGERNEAEE 2 ETEEK -
TEEEDESRERZ2EEBRHEET
BEE SERZEZFHELTFT K
12%%E902,243,858B T (ZEZ h F :
1,020,369,8627& jT) ° B K I 7 2 37 EN
SERBMERBIRE Tt ARLTRIE
ZINEREESIHEZ  HDRIRERD I
2B R £H31,339,238 B T (ZEENF :
62,558,60478JT) °

TERER-ZZANF=ZRAEARE &
ERFENGEFRER240% -

EFERFEAIHBIE HREFHEE
mZEREERBERERERAI=TH
B EERERERLR=Z2EFERKE

For the year ended 31 March 2010, loss before income tax of the
Group amounted to HK$37,683,956 (2009: profit before income
tax amounted to HK$35,890,949) representing a decrease of
205% compared with last year. Loss attributable to shareholders
amounted to HK$46,697,885 (2009: profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to HK$23,165,251) representing a decrease
of 302% compared with last year. The decrease was mainly due to:

1. the decrease in sales amounting to HK$180,052,026 resulted
from the adverse impact of the global economic downturn;

2. the impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
amounting to HK$21,005,900 recognised and the related
expenses amounting to HK$9,694,058 accrued for the closure
of the assembly factory for consumer electronic products in
Dongguan;

3. the increase in depreciation and amortisation expenses
amounting to HK$28,306,882 arising mainly from the new
factory for printed circuit boards (“PCB”) of the Group in Jiangxi
which commenced its production in March 2009; and

4. the increase in finance costs amounting to HK$4,929,285
which was mainly caused by the additional loans for financing
the construction and operation of the Jiangxi factory.

PCB business remained to be the core business of the
Group. Turnover of the segment for the year reduced 12%
to HK$902,243,858 (2009: HK$1,020,369,862) as a result of
diminution both in selling price and quantities of High Density
Interconnect Boards. The PCB segment incurred a profit amounted
to HK$31,339,238 (2009: HK$62,558,604) after taking account of
the increases in depreciation and amortisation expenses induced
from commencement of production in the new PCB factory in
Jiangxi.

Our new PCB factory in Jiangxi commenced operation in March
2009. The production output of PCB in the factory was around 40%
of the total production output for the year.

For the electronic products business segment, the management

decided to cease the operation of the electronic assembly factory
in Dongguan because of the continuous shrinkage of sales and
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FE#{RLE Chairman’s Statement

KT - EF 2 20 Z E 18 540,347,559
T (ZZEZENEFE 1,752,544 5) » b Jh
TEE2FEERL WE -BERRBRA
BEFEERTRALIBEEFZEBERM
ﬁo

operation in consumer electronic products and unclear prospect.
This segment incurred a loss amounted to HK$40,347,559 (2009:
HK$1,752,544). It was caused by the net operation loss for the
year, the impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and the
related expenses accrued for the closure of the factory.

RS2

Prospect

EEEERETEMERE  RFELED
R ED I AR B AR ETS -

BEINRER-ZENF=FHHRKRE
g MHEESTOEBNECEME
ARUHEDN FEFEESUERRR
MEBLBRZBEN H-_Z—ZFWMA
ZZ-ZFXRA(E—F)  HRIKER
ZEERLEFRBEZM30% o

A BANAZIAEMBERRATLE
o URARBHESEREALAZES -
EMATENLIAEETE BBIES
AERMREMBBCEFUAEZRENR
ZEEER -

REMS  BLEDER - 3GFREFANE
AFREM 2 FREHE R E KRBT H
REEBENARHFRENFREZ  $ER
AEBERGEREE ZRRERESH
BRZEM[ -

After ceasing the electronic products business, our management
will focus all the effort on development and operation of the PCB
business.

Along with the Jiangxi factory commenced operation since March
2009, it had been approved as approved supplier by several
international renowned enterprises recently. Customer base is
now broadened and hence sales revenue will have potential to
grow. From April 2010 to June 2010 (the first quarter), production
output of PCB increased over 30% compared with those of the
corresponding period of last year.

However, we are still under pressure of cost increasing not only
including possible increases in material prices and labor costs
but also possible appreciation of Renminbi. In order to ease the
negative impact induced from the aforesaid factors, we would try
with full endeavor to reach the economic scale of production, to
move towards hi-technology, and uplifting the degree of automation
in production.

In the long-run, the increasing demand of LED televisions, 3G
mobile phones and net books, with the stimulation policy on the
domestic economy by the government of Mainland China, will
form a solid foundation to enhancing our Group’s PCB business
development.

B

Appreciation

AAERRESSHEEERETI Z2HY
MEM  ZBERFRAIFDRR-EUR
M2 BUAROHE -

REEEDm
EHRR
TE

E%  —B-BFtA=+1A

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our gratitude and
sincere appreciation to all management and staff members for their
diligence and dedication, and also to our business partners and the
Company’s shareholders for their continuing support.

On behalf of the Board
Yip Sum Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 July 2010
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=] B8

Overview

BE-Z-ZF=A=+—-HBLEE &
B EEEF T HK16% @ HZE931,579,923
BT (ZEZENEF 1,111,631,94987T) -
PR R FEL B 183£46,697,885B L (Z B E
hE  RREMGBFIZE23,165,25187T) »
B EF T #302% ©

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the revenue of the Group
amounted to HK$931,579,923 (2009: HK$1,111,631,949)
representing a decrease of 16% compared with last year
whereas the loss attributable to shareholders amounted to
HK$46,697,885 (2009: profit attributable to shareholders amounted
to HK$23,165,251) representing a decrease of 302% compared with

last year.
Bt 7% 2] B8 Financial Review
EE R Revenue

AEEEBTERRERHEDRISHER
REFHER -

The Group principally engages in the manufacturing and selling of
printed circuit boards and consumer electronics products.

MENRBLERNT : The revenues for 2010 and 2009 were as follows:
—E—FF —EENF Do
2010 2009 Decrease
BT BT %
HK$ HK$ %
EN Jill 4R B AR Printed circuit boards 902,243,858 1,020,369,862 12
EFEmMm Electronic products 29,336,065 91,262,087 68
931,579,923 1,111,631,949 16

RAFRE AEEXREER - RFIRTE
RENFEFBAERFERRE 264% °

In the current year, the total revenue from customers in Hong Kong,
Macao and Mainland China represented 64% of the Group’s total
revenue.

Cost of sales

KEEHERANT IR £818,258,78778 7T
(ZZEZ N F :945,058,6178 ) ' K&
FETH13% °

AEEFNERI5%EE12%  FEHR =
ZENFZRAHBREEZIATRERE
EZIEXHE - ©£% 528,579,376
TT(ZZEZTNF : 2,230,341 7T) ©

Same Time Holdings Limited

Cost of sales in the current year decreased to HK$818,258,787
(2009: HK$945,058,617) representing a decrease of 13% compared
with last year.

The decline in gross profit margin from 15% to 12% was mainly
due to the depreciation expense incurred at the new PCB factory
in Jiangxi amounted to HK$28,579,376 (2009: HK$2,230,341) as it
commenced operation since March 2009.
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HAn & & WA

Other operating income

Hh&E W A BEE E miEE3,733,530
BT (ZEZENF 1,834,770 ) » H
B A BE BT #8586 1,666,056/ T (ZEE N
F\) RITE T AFWEH,270,5018 7T
(ZEZNIF 1 1,164,750/87T) °

Other operating income mainly included sales of manufacturing
by-products amounted to HK$3,733,530 (2009: HK$1,834,770);
government subsidies of Mainland China amounted to
HK$1,666,056 (2009: Nil) and a net gain on derivative instruments
amounted to HK$1,270,501 (2009: HK$1,164,750).

TR

Administrative expenses

THEXRESE,192,7918B T (ZEZ H
% :03,791,528/ B L) BMEF T #8% °
TBRREREEERARNFE MM IEH KA o

Administrative expenses decreased to HK$86,192,791 (2009:
HK$93,791,528) representing a decrease of 8% compared with last
year, which was mainly due to better cost control in current year.

Hn & &R %

Other operating expenses

Hi&ER XL E13,280,938/8 T (=
EENF :5,164,34658 T) B EF M
157% °

HtEERXBREALREEF2EHE
& 9,694,058 T (ZEZENF B K
AR M BR2,672,748 B L (ZEENF :
4,251,647 T) (h B EHEFE20.3% (= F
ZNEF 0.4%) °

Other operating expenses increased to HK$13,280,938 (2009:
HK$5,164,346) representing an increase of 157% compared with
last year.

Other operating expenses included expenses accrued for
the closure of the electronic assembly factory amounted to
HK$9,694,058 (2009: Nil) and bad debts written off amounted to
HK$2,672,748 (2009: HK$4,251,647) which represents 0.3% (2009:
0.4%) of total sales.

ME BERRERESE

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

WE - BERZRMBREREIEA21,005900
BT (ZEENE  8) FTEANRKRESE
TERBMENYE  BERRERERK -

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$21,005,900 (2009: Nil) representing the impairment loss on the
property, plant and equipment of our electronic assembly factory in
Dongguan.

BE KA

Finance costs

RE R AR AH21,217,9908 T (ZEThF :
16,288,705 jT) B X F1E MN30% o £ E
HRAELHEEREETIAREMMEE
PR o

Finance costs amounted to HK$21,217,990 (2009: HK$16,288,705)
representing an increase of 30% compared with last year, which
was mainly due to the additional loans for financing the construction
and operation of the Jiangxi factory.
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EEDRE

Review of operations

ED I 4R B& AR 0 &P

EEET B£E902,243,858/ 8L (ZEE
% 11,020,369,8628 T) IE AR FEHAE
EHS97% (ZBEBHE  92%) o DEL
ET M E31,339,2388B T (ZEENF
62,558,6048 ) WNEZERELER
BREBRIFETHREE -

¥ T % £29,336,0658 T (ZEEN

E 191,262,087 ) A FERE X

3% (ZZEENE 1 8%) - DEREEHS

EiE N £40,347,5598 T (BB NF -

1,752,544 ) » WIHIEAYE  BER

REREBERNREALIREEFEZ2EE
BRAMY -

Printed Circuit Boards Segment

Sales decreased to HK$902,243,858 (2009: HK$1,020,369,862)
which accounts for 97% (2009: 92%) of the Group’s total revenue
for the current year. Segment result decreased to HK$31,339,238
(2009: HK$62,558,604), which was due to the diminution both in
selling price and quantities of High Density Interconnect Boards.

Electronic Products Segment

Sales decreased to HK$29,336,065 (2009: HK$91,262,087)
which accounts for 3% (2009: 8%) of the Group’s total revenue
for the current year. Segment result was increased to a loss of
HK$40,347,559 (2009: HK$1,752,544) which was mainly due to the
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and the related
expenses accrued for the closure of the factory.

23 8 0 R B BUR R

Liquidity and financial resources

TEBR-_ZT—ZEF=A=+—H2#E
EBEmERE 2 &IE A559,265,147%
T (ZEZhF 356,189,163 T) & &
WEAUBT - EARARKEEE - A&H
R-BE-ZE=ZA=+—-HzZEBLZEAE

108% (ZEENE 1 71%) » HFEFH %
BBRETNBRCIEMERTER  kETHE

BRBEERRUBERIG 2R -

At 31 March 2010, total borrowings of the Group, including
obligations under finance leases, amounted to HK$559,265,147
(2009: HK$356,189,163) which were payable in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars and Renminbi. The Group’s gearing ratio at 31
March 2010, which was calculated as the ratio of total borrowings
less pledged bank deposits, and cash at banks and in hand to total
equity, was 108% (2009: 71%).

R-ZE-ZF=A=+—HB xEEZ# At 31 March 2010, the Group’s total borrowings were repayable as
BEERBOT : follows:
—_E-FF —EEAEF
2010 2009
BT BT
HK$ HK$
—F R Within one year 393,896,515 70% 219,805,246 62%
ETHF In the second year 76,167,185 14% 76,607,745 22%
E=ZFEFERF In the third to fifth years 89,201,447 16% 59,776,172 16%
559,265,147 100% 356,189,163 100%

8
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R-Z-2FE=A=1-0 AEEZS
BTEEMAMT

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s total banking facilities were
summarised as follows:

—E-FF —ZENF

2010 2009

HK$ HK$

B B

BIRTEER Total banking facilities granted 723,451,433 415,708,286
EFERAZEESR Facilities utilised (485,338,451)  (247,670,096)
HAREAZEER Available facilities 238,112,982 168,038,190

BEBHEY  UAKEEEFELEITERZ
RITIEE %8 5306,948,9128 T (= FF
NLE 3,882,614 L) » ZEEEZKREA
TF{EB519,428 2728 T (ZEZENF !
10,725,4968 ) °

AEEERCZETRITHETHEFRS
B ERHE RENAEB2BEBHRESR
BZM (VN EEzRAEERUNEARER
TEEZ 22 RINEEREH ETERE
BEF(ZZEENF  FAEEERZ—#
RITHMETPHEPZEGBEREE  REAL
EEZREBLETEEDLR085) - R=ZF
—ZEF=ZA=+—H ' AEEZERRT
S B4 4 £4#168,000,0008 7T ' EHE
B T #117,000,000/8 7t * HRAARNEE
BERTZE2% BURPREEBERS
39,457,206 7t (ZZZ L F © 6,000,000
BL)CEEEEBERPEFIEAR

EE -ABE-Z-ZTF=A=+—-H&XK
BoHEMER B2EMTF2@QZHRE

# o

RZZE-ZFE=F=+—H AEBz&
BEHERKIEBRT3,926,6968 T (ZEFH
F :108,519,0678 ) IUAEE 2 Y
¥ HERREELEERR ZEWE-
MERZEZREFER151,181,265/%
TT(ZZEZNF 197,181,423/ T) °

Among the total facilities, banking facilities amounted to
HK$306,948,912 (2009: HK$3,882,614) are secured by a
legal charge on the Group’s assets with a net book value of
HK$519,428,272 (2009: HK$10,725,496).

During the year ended 31 March 2010, certain of the banking
facilities granted to the Group stipulated that (i) the gearing ratio
of the Group should not be more than 1, (ii) the total liabilities over
total equity of the Group should not be more than 2.2 and (iii) the
assets should not be pledged without permission (2009: one of the
banking facilities granted to the Group stipulated that the current
ratio of the Group should not be less than 0.85). At 31 March 2010,
the Group breached such covenants. The total banking facilities
from the relevant banks were approximately HK$168 million of
which approximately HK$117 million was utilised as at 31 March
2010. Accordingly, the non-current portion of bank loans amounting
to HK$39,457,206 (2009: HK$6,000,000) was reclassified as a
current liability in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2010. Please
refer to note 2(a) “Basis of preparation” for further detail of changes
subsequent to 31 March 2010.

At 31 March 2010, obligations under finance leases of the Group
amounting to HK$73,926,696 (2009: HK$108,519,067) are secured
by a legal charge on the Group’s property, plant and equipment with
a net book amount of HK$151,181,265 (2009: HK$197,181,423).

9
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BERMWEBR

Employees and remuneration policies

TEBURPERENRZHR B &K
RIAMAR-_ZE-—ZF=A=+—H1{E
ABI3518A(ZZZNEF 1 4,016A) >
MEARBMAREERABEA (=
ZZNF MAN) BE-Z-—ZTHF=A
E+-HLEFE EERFK (TEEES
<) 557125,485,5808 T (ZEZAF !
153,399,977 7t) » HFMER —RIZ ™5
EERBAEEMEE  &NEBEHTG
FEN IR o

At 31 March 2010, 3,518 (2009: 4,016) staff members and workers
were employed in our Chang An factory, Feng Gang factory
and Jiangxi factory in Mainland China and 42 (2009: 41) staff
members were employed in the Group’s Hong Kong and Macao
Office. Staff costs, excluding directors’ remuneration, amounted
to HK$125,485,580 for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009:
HK$153,399,977). Remuneration packages are generally structured
with reference to the prevailing market practice and individual
qualifications. The remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed
on a periodic basis.

BE 220K Bf 2 [ B % AR B i b

Exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates and related
hedges

FEBZBEFBEUBT  ETRARE
JIE - EEERMEAIRARB ZERER
BEARRBRRFRNLRERZHERS
BT B E R E R o

Same Time Holdings Limited

The Group’s borrowings are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars and Renminbi. Management did not
anticipate significant fluctuation in exchange rates of United States
dollars and Renminbi and had not used financial instruments
extensively to hedge against such risk during the year.
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EEE AT RERFOEERURERR
EEREALEERR - FR - RAAF—
BENAEBBEREMERQAES LD
BRATETRADME T NFAREEE
ARRTR(TEEXERERTAD -

The board of directors (the “Board”) is committed to promoting good
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and to enhance the Group’s performance. Throughout the year,
the Company was in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

EECEHZRH

Directors’ securities transactions

ARTREHRMETRAUMFTAB LT A
AEFETESXZNEETA (REST
Al - ARBREOABEESFHIBIEES
B MEESURE REBE-Z-ZF
ZA=+t-HLFE FEHEETET
RIFFET AR ZE o

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct
regarding the directors’ securities transactions. The Company has
made specific enquiry with all directors of the Company, who have
confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2010.

g

Board of directors

RAAFHESEFTEREE - ESEHFT
BRRBEREEND BRAGDEK A5H
SREEBEENRBREEFETHITRER
B R BE @) ©

Exeh A EEEAN BRE=Z89TE
ER=ZFBIUFITES —BBEULFHY
TESABLTRAMREREEXSS
ERVEENEEEERNE -

EBVFHNTESHCRE LHRESA3
RELFEBLSG2EAE - ERE - K
RAEABREZ2BILMK -

ExsEeEfRETER BERLIOR.
LENPBHRR - HEEERRE -RE
BER EERE BEEXBREREFBRE
B 2RESITNESREREHCESS
NHREEER - AARNEEERFESR
FO8% o

The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility
for leadership and control of the Company. The Board set strategies
and directions for the Group’s activities with a view to develop its
business. The senior management of the Group implements such
strategies and directions in the day-to-day management.

The Board comprises six directors, with three executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses the appropriate
professional accounting qualifications or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rules 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. On this basis, the Company considers each of them
is independent.

The Board meets regularly, at least four times a year, to review
financial statements, material investments in new projects,
dividend policy, major financings, treasury policies and changes
in accounting policies. All directors have access to board papers
and related materials which are provided on a timely manner. The
Company Secretary keeps the minutes of board meetings.

11
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BRESEERE—2—SFE=g=+—
AESEERNEREHMT :

The attendance of individual directors to board meetings held in the
year ended 31 March 2010 is listed below:

HER
HITESE Executive Directors Attendance
BERALEE (F/E) Mr YIP Sum Yin (Chairman) 717
W ALAR Z = Madam YU Hung Min 717
ey 1% 2 = Madam YU Pei Yi 3/7

BMARZTBERAREEZZ T - mE

Madam YU Hung Min is the spouse of Mr YIP Sum Yin. Madam YU

ZERWAMEZ T 28K Pei Yi is the sister of Madam YU Hung Min.

H g =
BIAFBITES Independent Non-Executive Directors Attendance
RAKREE Mr LAl Wing Leung, Peter 5/7
MEIE XL Mr LAM Kwok Cheong 6/7
ZERTL Madam LEE Mei Ling 6/7

BAFDTESEMFEIHEME ARE
RO BRBERELRRBRAQNRAHE
RHANEHEE-

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of
two years and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meetings in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

EERTHRAR

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

ARBEFERERALLE  MITHARR
ERAKE -2 NEEFEARSE M
HBERAWNESD -

IREETREER BRESRANE
B REAMESNEZRITLZRE  BE

ESRANEF BREEBILEXERE
BRERF -

THRRAESELENAREFRER -

ERAEERERARREZRSE °

Same Time Holdings Limited

The Chairman of the Company is Mr YIP Sum Yin whereas the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company is Mr YIP How Yin, Maurice.
Their roles are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting
its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by other
directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

Mr YIP How Yin, Maurice is the brother of Mr YIP Sum Yin.
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Nomination of Directors
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At 31 March 2010, the Company had not set up a Nomination
Committee. Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, any director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-election
at the next following general meeting after appointment. In
considering the nomination of a new director, the Board will take
into account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates. In determining the
independence of independent non-executive directors, the Board
follows the requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

During the year, no new director had been appointed.

yWEES

Remuneration Committee

FHEESER_ZEZRFNATHEHBRE
EEMY HEBEZEBUFITES:
FERULL(ZEEERE)  BAKREER
MEIE X% -

FHEEESC2RTAUETBESE -

FHEEEBNRBE-Z-Z2F=A
ST -HLEFERT-REE 2BHAE
HMEHFEER -

ZEEECIERBEAEHAREERE
EHFMBRRER UREEESSRY
23 ARERTURREXER - HM
ZESERARMESEBNHMBER
XNFAEENHITESERSREEAE

MEFMAKF -MBESREE2BHEAL
SHBERSEASHH -

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 15
September 2005. The Committee consists of three independent
non-executive directors: Madam LEE Mei Ling (Chairman of the
Committee), Mr LAl Wing Leung, Peter and Mr LAM Kwok Cheong.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Committee met once in the year ended 31 March 2010, which
was attended by all members.

The principal duty of the Committee is to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for remuneration of all directors. For this purpose, professional
advice may be sought if considered necessary. The Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and approved the Group’s remuneration
policy and the levels of remuneration paid to executive directors
and senior management of the Group. No directors or any of his/her
associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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Auditor’s remuneration

BE-_Z-—-ZF=A=+—-HLEE-
EBNAEERHMzERRIFERZRSE
E M2 5 51,150,0008 T (ZEZNEF :
1,140,00058 7t) 1,622,410 T (=& =&
FLE 11,206,920/ 7T) °

For the year ended 31 March 2010, fees payable to the auditor
of the Group for audit and non-audit services amounted to
HK$1,150,000 (2009: HK$1,140,000) and HK$1,622,410 (2009:
HK$1,206,920) respectively.

FEBEUT XM : The significant non-audit service assignments covered by these
fees include the following:
-l
R#%EE Nature of service Amount
BT
HK$
% R Tax services 1,093,910
H b iR 7% Other services 528,500
EREES Audit Committee

EREEER-NWNANFEA-—HHES
R REBE=FBUFHNITES:
MBEIELRE (EEEEFE) - BAREER
FEBZL

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 1 April
1999. The Committee consists of three independent non-executive
directors: Mr LAM Kwok Cheong (Chairman of the Committee), Mr
LAl Wing Leung, Peter and Madam LEE Mei Ling.

ERZECSEREBEE-ZE—ZF=H The Committee met twice in the year ended 31 March 2010.
S+t-BLHEEETMAEE  EBIEE  Attendance of individual directors is listed below:
HEEFIWMT
H =
Attendance
MEIE %E Mr LAM Kwok Cheong 2/2
RKREE Mr LAl Wing Leung, Peter 1/2
ZERTTL Madam LEE Mei Ling 2/2

AR ESTEREEVZESHESHED
SHEABREEHMAERMZIRILIER
ZEREC IRRBOEERERTAC
RZZBERENAZ+THEELRR®N - 3
HEXZESCHBERER BEREES
CEIEEREEEEREENEE TR
EREFRAIPEIZEN -

Same Time Holdings Limited

Written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted by the Board
of the Company on 30 June 2005, with reference to “A Guide for
The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in accordance with the
Code. The principal activities of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal controls.
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BE-_Z-ZF=-A=1+—-BHLFER-
ERZEBRRTERUBERE_ET
NEZA=T—HLEEZFBRREMBR
RERBEZZEZNFAA=ZTHZHHEK
ER MRk - 3B SR BUAD &Y B A
BE TJTE -BEREBURERSBEYSD
ZBE NESSE2REHESE-

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Audit Committee met to
review the Company’s annual report and financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2009 and the Company’s interim report
and financial statements for the six months ended 30 September
2009 and held discussions with external auditor regarding financial
reporting, compliance, scope of audit, policies for maintaining
independence and reported to the Board.

MR EE 12

Internal control

ESECERAREANERFEZAR
HOUERSELARBEENEFEER
MEEHE  URERRER ZEES
BACHANEZERAQAEERUBER
BESENER BETEERREBETE
# URETIMEZINZIREREER
ERBRR -BERZEETERAMERE
FEZEREANMN - ADAEEF D MR

The Board has conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group and performed necessary
and appropriate actions to maintain the internal control system
for the interests of the shareholders. In particular, the Board’s
review has considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget. The
Audit Committee also reviews the internal control system, ensuring
its effectiveness. The Company will continue to use its best

endeavours to enhance the existing internal controls system.

Directors’ responsibility statement

BEZAMEERHE -

EECEEEH
ESNMERARBEERER S ERR
ARG E B HRE - ﬁ'ﬁﬂ-‘%lﬁ&%%&
A SRR IT MR BF D e o

EFCENHREEERUCEBREARE
ERAE -ESRBEEAYHHRRIUE
Az THRERE MEEHZRTEE
BEREIFERTRITFXF BAEBKRREAE
HEBRBBERBETEASHAINEZE
THMPHERRATI EAERARYE
ZHE) AREERIELEREHNES
LXEH**EE%SE&‘J%HZ@EEE% o WE
ERARBEBLENEERFERLYES
E!ﬂ%i&%)’b%?’ém

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Group’s
annual results and interim results are announced in a timely
manner.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s profit and cash flow
projections prepared by management. The directors consider
that, based on the renewed banking facilities up to the date of
approval of the Group’s financial statements, the ongoing support
from principal banks and existing and new customers and baring
any unforeseen adverse changes to the operations and financial
performance of the Group such as substantial increase in material
and labour costs and appreciation of Renminbi, the Group should
be able to generate sufficient cash flows to cover its operating costs
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the Group’s financial statements on a going concern basis.

B ED 2 EAEEE R

Auditor’s responsibility statement

NEZEAYE M ERE CBERRAAQT
BE-_E-ZF=-A=1+—-—RALEEHH
MERZBIZHBENRER

The responsibilities of the external auditor about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached
to the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2010.
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ESEeRERERBRE-_Z-—2F=A
St-HALFEZHREEREERYER
R

The directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.

FEEH

Principal activities and segment analysis of operations

ARBA2EBEXBRREEZR -HIWB A
AeEBEBRARE T HE MK ENRI AR
WMz REREE -

FEEREBIBEEEEARRINE
IR B T ¥R AR RS ©

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are the manufacturing and
selling of consumer electronic products and printed circuit boards.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by
segments is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

EEF ok

Results and appropriations

AEBEARFEZXBERNEHZEFS
W RA o

ESEEBRTRBEE_Z-ZF
=+t-BLEFERE -

R

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 29.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2010.

W&

Reserves

AEERAXARFAZFEELEBIRE
BB R R BRRMTE27

BRBRERE-NAN—FQ3FE (BB
FEARRARN=E-ETF=ZA=+—H
2 A1 2R B B47,291,2778 T (Z &
ZHE 1 47,569,943 ) °

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 27 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2010, distributable reserves of the Company,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) amounted to HK$47,291,277 (2009: HK$47,569,943).

ME - BERRE

Property, plant and equipment

AEEZME BRERREEZDFHEAR
B ISR R RE7 ©

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

R A

Share capital

AATBBRARERN 2 S B EBEHN I IE R
FMtEE26 ©

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

BLRBERE

Pre-emptive rights

N Bz 40 Bl o 3 SRR ST R IR 2 AR ST
MBEREZEGTESRE QR FELEHME
BARRBEHRZENRSE -

Same Time Holdings Limited

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of
the Company, although there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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TFEMBERE

Five year financial summary

FEEEBETAMBRFEZREREE
BEREFNEI104E -

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 104.

BE HEIFEERD

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

RERN  AABALEBOARNT KRG
REARBMEWBLAABEBESHER
REZRAD °

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares and neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of
the shares of the Company during the year.

BB HE T &

Share options

AARBRRE-ZZRF-A=-+=HE
TREERARE ERERANERE
g (Tsr8)) - B SERSIRREEEE
T SRREUEAEEZEEREEFH
BRf e

FEZAZEALTBENAEENESR
BE : (MEAAEENESIEEAZE
AEHRNE2EEE H(INVENAER
MEZHREREERZFEENRA -

BRESERNDSIRMER L » H1TE
B (TRABZRETUAR) BHOR
DHE: (ROREREEREBRXFAEA
BERABz2WHER{NRORREE
ApREARAERS AEBXAEA®RESR
e PR THE ZEP2RSE

REBETETEREMEMFEREZEBR
EMBTZREaRNMHBETSEBRERMR
EFFEERARALARR-_ZEZTRF_A
“TZHAEBTREZ10% ([ —REER
H1) - UG

(@) RATRAEREAEG LSRBRAE
EE-RERERS  ROBHLTBE
BREAMELCEZREIED 2AQT
2ETRE10%; &

At the special general meeting held on 23 February 2005, the
adoption of a new share option scheme (“the Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company. The Scheme is
set up for the purpose of attracting and retaining quality personnel
to provide incentive to them to contribute to the business and
operations of the Group.

The eligible persons of the Scheme included (i) any director
or employee of the Group; (ii) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects included any director or employee of the
Group; or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director or
employee of the Group.

The options may be granted without any initial payment for the
options at an exercise price (subject to adjustments as provided
in the Scheme) equal to the highest of (i) the nominal value of
the shares; (ii) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the grant of the
option; and (iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the option.

The total number of shares which may be issued pursuant to
the exercise of options to be granted under the Scheme of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at 23 February 2005 (“General Mandate Limit”) provided
that:

(a) the Company may seek approval of shareholders in general
meeting to refresh the General Mandate Limit up to 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the
shareholders’ approval to refresh the limit; and
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BREE (&)

Share options (Continued)

by RAFASITERRAELSKEK
RHEREBE —RIBEERS 8B
RiE BRBREZHE RERTAR
AEEESEBENCIEE S HE
E o MERBHERADBAEMEME
BB EREBRITEZERETU
TERETZROVAETEEBEAA
TR ERTRANI0%

HAFGER-ZZHEFE_A=-+=H&KHM
B ADAEEH£HE47,438,520R 8 31T
B RIE—MRIBFERBIZTE TR E A
REE A 4,743,852 R 10 2 B AR HE o

FMRIERIBE TR ERERRAE - RE
fA+=@EAMER  RITEREFERT
BHR2HEECBREMBITRETFRITZ
RARRDBE  THEBERLRASET
BRAD 21% ©

SRR - E-RF-A=-+=-HEH-
RZB-—ZFE=ZF=+—0 KFEILE
BRERE -

(b) the Company may seek separate shareholders’ approval in
general meeting to grant options beyond the General Mandate
Limit only to participants specifically identified by the Company
before such approval is sought, subject to limitation that no
option shall be granted under the Scheme which would result
in the aggregate number of shares issued or issuable upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme of the Company to exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

As at 23 February 2005, being the date of adoption of the Scheme,
there were in issue of 47,438,520 shares. Therefore options to
subscribe for a total of 4,743,852 shares may be issued under the
Scheme pursuant to the General Mandate Limit.

The maximum number of shares (issued and to be issued) in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme to
any one grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the share capital of the Company in issue unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company had been obtained in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

The Scheme will expire on 22 February 2015. As at 31 March 2010,
no option had been granted under the Scheme.

=%

Directors

FAREEAREAYE2EFESNT

RARALE
WAL B 2 £
Ty i % 2 &
BIKR L
MBS T
FERRRZL”

* BNFBITES

RAERAERERRBFARE HEELE
REXRZLEREBEALCTEABEREMA
BISE0oHi B E &R - BMRSMBERE
2 FREEEF-

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr YIP Sum Yin

Madam YU Hung Min
Madam YU Pei Yi

Mr LAl Wing Leung, Peter *
Mr LAM Kwok Cheong *
Madam LEE Mei Ling *

* independent non-executive directors

At the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr LAM
Kwok Cheong and Madam LEE Mei Ling will retire by rotation in
accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws. These
directors, being eligible, had offered themselves for re-election at
the meeting.
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EERBEN

Directors’ service contracts

EFHRARNALETLAAR-—FARN
HMECEERERMN MBLEZRBEH -

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

EEZANER

Directors’ interests in contracts

AREREMBARARFEEARNFRE
AFEEEBTEMNSRARBZEEM
ARARESHESABETETEREARE
BZERRN -

No contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

EERSREEAEZHME

Remuneration of directors and senior management

FEERBE-ZE-FTF=ZA=1+—-HL
FERTALAESRAKESRERA
EzMEFRENMBRRMEEI0-

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company and the senior management of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

EENSREBEAEBZEABE

Biographical details of directors and senior management

FRALRESREREEAEZBARE
BT

HITES

BERALE BEAT B AFXEEZ
IR -MEARER-ANZFRIEEZ
APAZ- MEXREGEELBIFE
BoEEEFIREETZE2N - -tHARE

TARAFEFELR YEEHEAEE
ZEBHR URERMREBRREITE-

WAMLET  REFA+ R BERAL
ECEE  TFRAEEABPAZ— 1R
—ANZFEMAREER BE-B¥E
BREVNATFEAFR-BRBEFER
HEQNRDITHEF - WEEAEEZTH
T

BMELZL BREAST5 RWARL
TR e RAXEERBA-t+HF -
BEBARBABEMNBAR 2REERE
BoR-NANEEMBAREEA WLt
BREREE B8RRI IHET -

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are
set out as follows:

Executive directors

Mr YIP Sum Yin, aged 61, is the Chairman of the Group. He is one
of the co-founders of the Group, which was founded in 1982. He
graduated from Taiwan Provincial College of Marine & Oceanic
Technology with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electronic
Engineering. He has over 36 years of experience in the electronics
industry and is responsible for the Group’s overall policy decisions
as well as product research and development.

Madam YU Hung Min, aged 56, is the spouse of Mr YIP Sum Yin
and is one of the co-founders of the Group. She worked for a semi-
conductor manufacturing company for more than 6 years and a LCD
watch manufacturing company for another 4 years before founding
the Group in 1982. She is responsible for the administration of the
Group.

Madam YU Pei Yi, aged 62, is the sister of Madam YU Hung Min.
She has worked for the Group for over 25 years. She is also a
director and the general manager of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Prior to joining the Group in 1984, she was an instructor
responsible for training workers in a factory.
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Biographical details of directors and senior management
(Continued)
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FredmiR HERTREFESEE
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr LAl Wing Leung, Peter, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in November
1997. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the University
of Hong Kong, and is an Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He
was also a registered representative of various stock exchanges in
Canada and the USA. He has over 31 years’ experience in banking
and securities industries.

Mr LAM Kwok Cheong, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 1997. In 1976,
he holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong
Kong and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong for over
30 years. He is a Justice of the Peace with Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. He is currently a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New
Territories. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
Wing Lee Holdings Limited and Sparkle Roll Group Limited.

Madam LEE Mei Ling, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in December 2004. She is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. She has been a Chartered Certified
Accountant for over 14 years.
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Biographical details of directors and senior management
(Continued)
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Senior Management

Mr YIP How Yin, Maurice, aged 54, is a brother of Mr YIP Sum Yin
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall corporate planning and management. He
obtained a Master of Science degree in Transportation Planning
and Engineering from the University of Leeds, the United Kingdom.
Prior to joining the Group in 1984, he had served as a consulting
transportation engineer to the Hong Kong Government for 3 years
and was also an assistant lecturer in the Centre of Urban Studies
and Urban Planning, the University of Hong Kong. He has over 26
years of experience in the consumer electronics industry.

Madam HO Heung Ming, aged 56, is a Financial Controller of the
Group. She holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. She joined the Group in 1991
and is responsible for the financial control function of the Group.

Mr LEE Chi Ming, aged 33, is a Financial Controller of the Group.
He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is also a CFA
(Chartered Financial Analyst) charterholder. He worked for the
Group from 2004 to 2007 and re-joined the Group in 2008 and is
responsible for the Group’s accounting control functions.

Madam SHIU Man Ching, aged 44, is the Company Secretary of the
Group. She is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. She joined the Group in 1995 and is
responsible for the Group’s company secretary functions.
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Interests of directors and chief executive in equity or
debt securities

RZB-FE=ZA=+—-RH BEERES
THEERAQATZRATHEEESTHR
RBHEHRPEGH ([&EFHGEH]) 55352
BRMEEZRCMACREEBHERS
FERAR(HRXm)ES LHRAZE
TARESETESRINWZESTR (MZ
7R ) MIGRRARBRAzEEZ0T

As at 31 March 2010, the interests of the directors and chief
executive in the share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”) or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) were as
follows:

BRES
4 0% g=| EEEE Percentage of
Name Number of shares Nature of interest shareholding
EHA 33,175,973 (Ktit) EARIAREZRA 58.28%
Yip Sum Yin (Note) Settlor and beneficiary of trust
BERA 33,175,973 (Ktit) ERRIARTZHEA 58.28%
Yip How Yin, Maurice (Note) Settlor and beneficiary of trust
gy AL A% 29,577,475 (Ktit) EEZEA 51.96%
Yu Hung Min (Note) Beneficiary of a trust
Bt - Note:

KA T29,5677,475 F R EH0.108 T 2
B 13 ([BR 12 1) BBAberdare Assets Limited
(I Aberdare 1) 2 & # 8 ZSum Tai Holdings
Limited ([Sum Tail) E&=#H ° Aberdarefi —
BEREEAZEIAERAREEREZEE
ZEAZZRARERALE WMARLZLIR
HEZRIKKE ©3,598,498K R0 —EZ
BEAZEREAERALTERTEESE ZMaroc
Ventures Inc. ([Maroc]) BEHEHE @ ZEE2
TEALBERARLERERERE °

BREBFIFEEER - RESRETALAZK
BLARMEA—BEREBARRESFESEREN -
REZZ-ZF=ZRA=+—-H BEEZHES
THREERADASIEEMABE QR (RES
RGIEXVE TR E) 2R - HEBROHES
THEEEFAECHENRRE S HROEIREF
BEECHACRESETIAS A QA RE
R EBEILR ©

BRALB 2 BRESTEISN  AOR - HHEQ
AREZERARAREFABESREMZHE &
EARAEERTETRAETEBALQF
FEMEB 2RO S ESMES -

29,577,475 shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (“Shares”) were
beneficially owned by Sum Tai Holdings Limited (“Sum Tai”), which is wholly
owned by Aberdare Assets Limited (“Aberdare”). Aberdare is wholly owned
by Mr Yip How Yin, Maurice as trustee of a discretionary trust established
for the benefit of Mr Yip Sum Yin, Madam Yu Hung Min and their family.
3,598,498 Shares were beneficially owned by Maroc Ventures Inc. (“Maroc”),
which is wholly owned by Mr Yip Sum Yin as trustee of a discretionary trust
established for the benefit of Mr Yip How Yin, Maurice and his family.

Save as disclosed above and the non-beneficial interest in certain
subsidiaries of the Company of a director in his capacity of a nominee
shareholder, as at 31 March 2010, none of the directors or any chief
executive of the Company had an interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Save for the Company’s share option scheme, at no time during the year
was the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors or chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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FERR

Substantial shareholders

RZE-ZFE=ZA=+—B BREEFRH
RIRA D BMK B E H R G E336kMFE
2BE FietEk THALT(RATEER
BETHEERN RAQTAREAPES

As at 31 March 2010, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a director or chief executive of the
Company) had interest in the share capital of the Company as
recorded in register required to be kept by the Company under

R section 336 of the SFO:
BEERESL
&tE EHE R EEEE Percentage of
Name Number of Shares Nature of interest shareholding
Sum Tai 29,577,475 (Mat1) NE)ER 51.96%
(Note 1) Corporate interest
Aberdare 29,577,475 (Mat1) NE)ER 51.96%
(Note 1) Corporate interest
Maroc (/t3t2) 3,598,498 BEREAA 6.32%
(Note 2) Beneficial owner
RERE 2,876,000 BERmERBA 5.05%
Lu Wing Yee, Wayne Beneficial owner
b= 2,876,000 RikER 5.05%

Yuen Tsui Ying

Bat -

1. ZERMHHESUm TaiBHEE - HESHE
MIBERTHRARNBRESES 2 EH%
KT EE AR o

2. MarocH—BERBERZETLTAERRE
EREHEE ZEAZZBABERAL
ERARKHEE °

BRELFABEEN RZFT-FF=A
=t—H REAQAMBREZRHE
BerMirEEEELMAT R MEA
TRARBARDIAEERD P HEEEME

[N
mHKE

Same Time Holdings Limited

Family interest

Notes:

1.  These Shares were beneficially owned by Sum Tai. Please refer to the
note to the section headed “Interests of directors and chief executive in
equity or debt securities” above.

2. Maroc is wholly owned by Mr Yip Sum Yin as trustee of a discretionary
trust established for the benefit of Mr Yip How Yin, Maurice and his
family.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, according to the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO, there was no person who had any interest
of short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.
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ERBRRRENz2EDS

Controlling shareholder’s interests in contracts

AEBEEAQRFAERRRREEMMER
A(ERREMRA BAEBRTIEFNE
REW (BEAAEEREERS) -

There is no contract of significance between the Group and a
controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including for the provision of
services to the Group.

EESH

Management contracts

AEBERAFEANLERBRELEM
BEEXRCERRTRIRZITREFTRAE

GIEEFS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was
entered into or existed during the year.

FEEFRHER

Major customers and suppliers

rEEEIRHEEREFMEZBERSE
EZEILWT :

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

2010 2009
% %

RIS Purchases
- BRRZHER — the largest supplier 26 24
-BAZEEHEEER — the five largest suppliers combined 54 48

HERE Sales

—BRAZEF — the largest customer 11 11
-BRAZREEEF &I — the five largest customers combined 34 31

EE REZBBEAIIEMRR BEE
EETEMAEEARARAS%U LE) I
EREAFEREBANEFFHESEM
o

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders (who to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

RELARERE

Sufficiency of public float

READAFBENRBRESSHRA K
DRRINBERFHR 2 HZERBEF - AR
REZXRINFE EHRA -

Same Time Holdings Limited

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, to the best knowledge of the directors and based on the
information publicly available to the Company, there was a sufficient
public float of the shares of the Company as required by the Listing
Rules.




Annual Report 2009-2010 —ZE2ZE A E2=-ZF - F F #f

EE2HE Report of the Directors

%D

Auditor

BBBREMBEIRKESHNEBAE
¥ AR AT S R e JE R SR B F R g
HRERTESERBEME - AQAFTER
BERRBFASLRERABZRERZS
TRV A AR D AL EED

AREEEMm
E

BB —E-ZTFLAZTAH

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire at the Company’s
forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-
appoint them as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Yip Sum Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 July 2010

25

Same Time Holdings Limited



=

EAZE=F— =% E R Annual Report 2009-2010

B ZEETHRE Independent Auditor’s Report

PRICEWATERHOUSE( COPERS

BORKESTME®H

#Same Time Holdings Limited & 8% % 5=
(REREAZMALZERA )

T2 (UTEHEBIEM) EEXT
#H N E29Z103ESame Time Holdings
Limited (&2 A ) REKE AR (AT
BIEEE)NREHBHRE LEEH
KRREER-_ZE—ZF=A=1+—HMNW
FERATEEEBREBZEZALFE
NEEWRRER SREoEFZEHRINEESE
ERER URFEEHTHEYUEREM
M5 iR T o

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone +852 2289 8888
Facsimile +852 2810 9888
pwchk.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAME TIME HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Same
Time Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 103, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2010,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

EERMBRRARKENTR

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

BERRESARERBEEBEIMLER
BB R EER R BFB(DTERG)
MEERERRUEEEM D PR ZE
REVBE/RER SEAEBERT BER
HEEFERNEEM QTSR B HRE
EEE AR IES - ERM E|/ER A FEH
REFFRBERMEFME RHERRAM ; 2
BNERABENSTHRR REBRTH
HEBEWERTfhE -

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.
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BB S

Independent Auditor’s Report

G

Auditor’s responsibility

EMNEEIRRBRMNEREZS
RENBERFEHER Y RREHEE
— W N—F (R FE) FORERMZEER
REBE RUZHITBREREELMER -
BEMTERABENARTEEMEMAL
B EYREFEMERE -

RMERBEEBETMASHANERE
FAERETER ELENEREMNET
EEAE YRBRATER  USER
EREFBRERESTIFEEMERER

ERYRATERF AEEE RN B RKRAT
BEBENRNBERNERERE -EEN
B FEURA Z BB - B A ER
RFRFERMEBVBRRFAEERER
PR E B o RS EBRE - ZEE
ZREZAFRERREEM A F it 5 3R &
BHRRBEHRIES  URITEENE
RSN ER S S NS SR B 2 R
BEBRRER -ERTEEFEESMRA
MEHBERNS BN RAELNS S
MEEM  URTEFBRROEEDER
FR e

EMERE BRAMESHERBRERR R
MEEMBSEMANELEREHER -

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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BER Opinion

KPRE ZEEETERRECBRERB In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
BIRmEZEINEEMAFRMR E2H fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
kE SEEEBR-ZE—-ZFTF=A=+—HW at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
EBRMRRR SEBREZBLEFEMNE  year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
ERESRE  WEIRBEB(ATGERG) Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

MWEBEREZAREE disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
BEERKEGSMERAR PricewaterhouseCoopers
HFEEIA Certified Public Accountants
BB —E-FFLtA=-+KH Hong Kong, 26 July 2010
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4z &k Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-—FE—-FF= J=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

2010 2009
Mt = BT BT
Note HK$ HK$
W= Revenue 5 931,579,923  1,111,631,949
HENR Cost of sales (818,258,787)  (945,058,617)
EF Gross profit 113,321,136 166,573,332
Hih & A Other operating income 6 8,441,719 4,412,110
DR HERERA Distribution and marketing costs (17,965,461) (20,007,998)
THHAX Administrative expenses (86,192,791) (93,791,528)
Hi&&Emx Other operating expenses (13,280,938) (5,164,346)
ME BERRERERSIE  Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 4(a) (21,005,900) -
cE (BR) /B Operating (loss)/profit 7 (16,682,235) 52,021,570
EEWRA Finance income 11 216,269 158,084
BE B Finance costs 12 (21,217,990) (16,288,705)
BRATER A (BB BA (Loss)/profit before income tax (37,683,956) 35,890,949
FEHEX Income tax expense 13 (9,013,929) (12,725,698)
REEW (BR) /BF (Loss)/profit attributable to
shareholders 14 (46,697,885) 23,165,251
MR ERE M RE Other comprehensive income
g for the year, net of tax
HVEETE K E 5 Currency translation differences 2,257,086 23,153,584
REEEZEKE Total comprehensive income
attributable to shareholders (44,440,799) 46,318,835
SR (BR) BN (EELR (Loss)/earnings per share
BE)RERREN (basic and diluted) for (loss)/profit
(B18]) /&7 attributable to shareholders 16 (82.0 centsi#ll) 40.7 centsiEAl
EISE103ENMEF AV KRRV EREY The notes on pages 35 to 103 are an integral part of these financial
3 e statements.
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HEEEBERXR Consolidated Balance Sheet

RZZE-ZFF=F=+—H As at 31 March 2010

2010 2009
Bt & BT BT
Note HK$ HK$
;3 ASSETS
EREEE Non-current assets
¥ BERRE Property, plant and equipment 17 844,617,758 814,192,685
HELTHE L FERRE Leasehold land and land use rights 18 31,483,818 24,675,999
BEWMFE Investment property 19 317,178 326,572
HMFERBERE Other non-current asset 21 350,000 350,000
876,768,754 839,545,256
RBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 22 120,786,880 110,289,841
E5 REMERR Trade and other receivables 23 217,316,803 158,748,797
THEGKEE Derivative financial assets 24 = 1,426,036
BEARTER Pledged bank deposits 25 70,733,013 -
RITEARR2 Cash at banks and in hand 25 71,857,684 52,747,732
480,694,380 323,212,406
HEE Total assets 1,357,463,134  1,162,757,662
&= EQUITY
BARMHE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 26 5,691,852 5,691,852
e Reserves 379,347,939 423,788,738
B R Total equity 385,039,791 429,480,590

Same Time Holdings Limited
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HEEEBERXR Consolidated Balance Sheet

RZZE-FF=F=+—H As at 31 March 2010

2010 2009
Bt &F BT BT
Note HK$ HK$
afs LIABILITIES
L =R Non-current liabilities
EX Borrowings 29 165,368,632 136,383,917
EEEHRAR Deferred income tax liabilities 30 6,649,331 7,180,213
EHE WA Deferred income 31 9,611,980 9,783,367
181,629,943 153,347,497
nEas Current liabilities
BESREMERNRK Trade and other payables 28 356,827,792 312,719,436
TEBRKEE Derivative financial liabilities 24 98,747 823,214
EX Borrowings 29 393,896,515 219,805,246
EMmEHAas Current income tax liabilities 39,970,346 46,581,679
790,793,400 579,929,575
Hmas Total liabilities 972,423,343 733,277,072
HMESREE Total equity and liabilities 1,357,463,134  1,162,757,662
FREBEE Net current liabilities 310,099,020 256,717,169
BEENTHERE Total assets less current liabilities 566,669,734 582,828,087
EHR ey 41 3
Yip Sum Yin Yu Hung Min
EZ EE
Director Director
$35F103EMNM T B BREMNEREI  The notes on pages 35 to 103 are an integral part of these financial
14 o statements.
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R-FE—FF=F=+—H As at 31 March 2010

2010 2009
Bt & BT BT
Note HK$ HK$
;3 ASSETS
EREEE Non-current assets
RHBARIZRE Interests in subsidiaries 20 205,019,923 205,685,102
RBEE Current assets
H A FE WX Other receivables 23 271,885 269,604
RITEARR2 Cash at banks and in hand 25 48,920 94,196
320,805 363,800
HEE Total assets 205,340,728 206,048,902
] EQUITY
BARMHE Capital and reserves
N Share capital 26 5,691,852 5,691,852
e Reserves 27 199,212,948 199,491,614
B Total equity 204,904,800 205,183,466
atg LIABILITIES
REBAR Current liabilities
H fth & 14 5% Other payables 28 435,928 865,436
mak Total liabilities 435,928 865,436
REZREE Total equity and liabilities 205,340,728 206,048,902
ERBEE Net current liabilities 115,123 501,636
BEERNTDHER Total assets less current liabilities 204,904,800 205,183,466
ERA i 41 43
Yip Sum Yin Yu Hung Min
EE EE
Director Director
$3I5E103EMNM T B BREMNERELI  The notes on pages 35 to 103 are an integral part of these financial
7 o statements.
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MEEZEH KR Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

1
Reserves
BiEE
BE  REEE  BHER  iTRB #E  RERF Eh
Share Share Contributed Legal  Exchange Retained Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve profits equity
(Waere)  (Wa27(c)
(note 27(c))  (note 27(c))
B B B B B B B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
R-ZEENEMA-A At 1 April 2008 5,691,852 151,921,671 15,940,952 - 29,193,602 181,552,048 384,300,125
ERE2EUEESE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 23,153584 23,165,251 46,318,835
ERALTRHE Transfer to legal reserve - - - 48,544 - (48,544) -
2008FREMRE (Ai£15) 2008 Final dividend
(note 15) - - (1,138,370) - - - (1,138,370)
RZZZEAF=A=+—H At 31 March 2009 5,691,852 151,921,671 14,802,582 48544 52,347,186 204,668,755 429,480,590
RZZZNEMA-A At 1 April 2009 5,691,852 151,921,671 14,802,582 48,544 52,347,186 204,668,755 429,480,590
ER2EUEEE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 2,257,086 (46,697,885) (44,440,799)
W=ZZ-FF=A=+—-H At 31 March 2010 5,691,852 151,921,671 14,802,582 48,544 54,604,272 157,970,870 385,039,791

SE35E103E MM ERA M B REWEES
% o

Same Time Holdings Limited

The notes on pages 35 to 103 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-E—FF=J=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

2010 2009
Mt = BT BT
Note HK$ HK$
BREFHNRERE Cash flows from operating activities

RELBEEZRS Cash generated from operations 32(a) 76,758,708 251,580,884

I B FI 2 Interest received 216,269 158,084

RITERREZANEZE Interest paid on bank loans and

overdrafts (15,685,008) (9,677,863)

MEREREZFEHRD Interest element of finance leases

payments (5,532,982) (6,610,842)

HER Income tax paid (16,165,672) (3,415,552)

REMEH Income tax refunded - 12,738,566
REFHZRERNER Net cash generated from operating

activities 39,591,315 244,773,277
RERBNRERE Cash flows from investing activities
S A RTERIEM Increase in pledged bank deposits (70,733,013) -
BEWE BERSE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (121,573,446) (240,594,711)
BEHREL MR LI Purchase of leasehold land and land
B use rights (7,364,431) -

HENE  BEREE Proceeds from disposal of property,

FBRIE plant and equipment 946,464 913,155

Wk BB A 6 B Government grant received - 1,131,222
RERBZREERTE Net cash used in investing activities (198,724,426)  (238,550,334)
MERHNRERE Cash flows from financing activities

HERITER New bank loans 316,187,573 151,018,100

EERITER Repayment of bank loans (79,620,541)  (109,174,258)

XARE Dividend paid - (1,138,370)

TARERERE2ER Capital element of finance lease payments

B (59,133,430) (65,062,413)
MEFBHZRERN Net cash generated from/(used in)

(ER) 38 financing activities 177,433,602 (24,356,941)
HEEZSLHTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 809,461 293,836
RERBEESEYWZF Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash

i/ (o) equivalents 19,109,952 (17,840,162)
REPZHEREELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

of the year 52,747,732 70,587,894
REXRZBRERBEE%EY  Cash and cash equivalents at the end

of the year 71,857,684 52,747,732
RERBREESEYHI: Analysis of cash and cash equivalents:

BOTERRRE Cash at banks and in hand 25 71,857,684 52,747,732
EBFE103E M MIzT A TR R A EFE SR The notes on pages 35 to 103 are an integral part of these financial
1 o statements.
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BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—FTF= J=1—H[IEE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

—RER

Same Time Holdings Limited ([ 4~ 2
A A—FXEBRFEIMRIZE
AT URERBBEXIMER
NEAFEREW - FMPEEMBIU B
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda ° & #i%=
B 5 B 3T R OB R E1426-32
FERTITEREE—H17E-

ARBRREMBAR (SB[ AEEH])
FERSORSBRRREFHEMZ

HREBBEBRRUBESR (RERE
HE) c MEAMBRRCLHESSE
EZE-ZFLAZ+BHUETIE -

FTESFBE

RRAGESMBHRERFEANEIRSH
BHERBRTX  -BREBEHAN LE
BEREMZRNFEFENEREM -

(a) BEE®E
REVBEREEZRIETBEM
AREEMZ2EBUBRELER
(TEA R ) MRSE - 428 %
BRDEBBEERAERE I
BURXAREEFTZEEESBEFTA
KENeHEENSHAE S (8
EOTHETR) WEMAMELEE -

RRFHAUBEANGES UK
BRTERAETHES MG
B -ENFEEEEEREALE
BEEstREBRPITEEAE -
REBTHESRSEHEHNE
MMNEE IS REESUE
BRBEABRINGENHE
EEMF4THE -

General information
Same Time Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited

liability company incorporated in Bermuda and listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The address of its principal
office is 17th Floor, Phase I, Kingsford Industrial Building, 26-
32 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing and selling of printed
circuit boards and consumer electronic products.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 26 July 2010.

Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—FTF= J=1—H[IEE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

2 FESTTHEGE)
(a) WEEE (&

AEBRZ-ZZ-—Z2F =8
=S+—-BzZzFRBEEAY
310,000,000 7T - B A R EE
R-ZE-ZFF=ZA=+—-H%2
BIRITEE CERAZEEER
AEGERHF2EEZREF
EESEICE YN I E KD

AEEZERAAEEERRTA
ErEZNERNBEEEER
HXRERBEME R=F—
ZF=ZA=+—HB FTEHEE
RTETFTRITERANZIEHS
B (fE29) - ZEMITIR
it 2 #5558 A %9168,000,000
B HRECFRZEEEAY
117,000,000 T - E=—F— &
F=ZA=+—H%& ~EECH
EHEHAMBEBRTNEESR
13,000,0008 T (BEE B F H
Z1=E%8117,000,0008 TA) °
MRtz o EREBHENREE 2
FTERTREBEUNEHRE
ZEEEINEEIZEERE -
BHERA HP—BEERTE
%= &% 575,000,000/
TRBH -BE EEETERT
REM—HEEERITHWIKEEE
EREGEGTER=Z—ZFt
B EHEEE 4 A98,500,000
BT ok RBEFERTEH
REBEEEERERRERR
BOBHZEE BHLMFER
TREEEBEEK  TESBN
WEEFT ST 28 -

2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$310 million. Details of the Group’s
available banking facilities, the utilisation and the net
book amount of assets pledged for such facilities as at 31
March 2010 are set out in note 33 below.

The Group meets its day to day working capital
requirements, capital expenditure and financing obligations
through cash inflow from operating activities and facilities
obtained from banks. As at 31 March 2010, the Group
breached the financial covenant requirements of certain
banking facilities (note 29). The total facilities from these
relevant banks were approximately HK$168 million of
which approximately HK$117 million was utilised as at 31
March 2010. Subsequent to 31 March 2010, management
initiated the repayment of bank loans amounting to
approximately HK$13 million from two relevant banks out
of the above outstanding bank borrowings of HK$117
million. Besides, management maintains continuous
communication with the Group’s principal banks on
the renewal of existing banking facilities and grant of
additional banking facilities. Up to the date of approval
of these financial statements, a relevant principal bank
granted a waiver from strict compliance of the financial
covenant requirements of its banking facilities amounting
to approximately HK$75 million as at 31 March 2010.
Furthermore, this bank and another relevant principal
bank renewed their banking facilities in July 2010 with
an aggregate amount of approximately HK$98.5 million
although similar financial covenant requirements are
imposed on such banking facilities. In addition, none of
these relevant principal banks have initiated withdrawal
of the banking facilities or requested early repayment of
the utilised facilities. Alternative plans have also been
developed to respond to any changes in facilities available
from principal banks.
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BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—FTF= J=1—H[IEE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

2 FESTTHEGE)
(a) WEEE (&

ERETSEVEEEEH UK
RRERBDESHKRRATH
ANEEBEZRETR - 25HE
REEKLEBEREE 2R
HEZEB2ETNE BERK
R BAEFREFDNESHF
B BENE S ARREAES
AT o

EFSCENEEZEBANRRS
AR ZREDNDBRRREEZE
TRERNDAFENLSHHH
RITEERR  -EZRBEEER
MHEBRUEAP 2 THRE
WEEHZRITFEE BEER
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Management also monitors closely the Group’s financial
performance and liquidity position and executes measures
to improve the Group’s cash flows. These measures
include cessation of business with poor performance and
disposal of the related property, plant and equipment,
proactive discussion with customers for a better profit
margin, development of business from new customers and
implementation of other cost control measures.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s profit and cash
flow projections prepared based on the assumption that
the existing banking facilities of the Group will continue
to be available or can be replaced by new facilities. The
directors consider that, based on the renewed banking
facilities up to the date of approval of these financial
statements, the ongoing support from principal banks and
existing and new customers and baring any unforeseen
adverse changes to the operations and financial
performance of the Group such as substantial increase in
material and labour costs and appreciation of Renminbi,
the Group should be able to generate sufficient cash
flows to cover its operating costs and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the
directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations that
are effective for the year ended 31 March 2010

The Group has adopted the following new or revised
standards, amendments and interpretation (“new
and revised HKFRSs”) which are mandatory for the
accounting periods beginning on 1 April 2009:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial
statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable financial instruments
(Amendments) and obligations arising on
liquidation
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2 FEEFBEKE) 2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(a) MREEE (F) (a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

() RZE—ZFF=ZF=+— (i) Standards, amendments and interpretations that
H 2 4 34 79 37 ] 86 A& &T are effective for the year ended 31 March 2010
BRI - EFTREFE (B) (Continued)

ERUBREENR  RHEBLR HRE HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an investment in a
Ehe Ry pHERgHY (Amendments) subsidiary, jointly controlled
{ZHES NEMRERK entity or associate

ERUBREEMNM  NRABERY HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based payment -

B DESS T vesting conditions and
Ras cancellations

ERURALEATN  SRIAZRE HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving disclosures about
L HiE financial instruments

BANBRSEN  £ELY HKFRS 8 Operating segments

EE(AREERLERE RAATEIR HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and Embedded derivatives
ZE8)-}ERER HKAS 39 (Amendments)

S ERINETA

BEARUERERE RFREERY HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer loyalty programmes
ZE8)-328B13

BE(ERGRRLERE HERUECHE HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the
ZEE)-HES construction of real estate

Bh (ARRRE BNERRESE HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges at a net investment in
REZEE)-RE6 ¥R a foreign operation

B5 (ARHERERE HEFEBEE HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of assets from
ZEE)-RE1S customers

EENBREEAN  WZZENEER HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
BIR LEBIRRE issued in 2008, except for

RANME the amendment to HKFRS 5
BRNBREE that is effective for annual
Bl5 2 AT periods beginning on or after
ZEENE 1 July 2009

tA-BRE

Bl EERR

£R

EEREREERN  RIZEAEEMR HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs

B LERNERE issued in 2009 in relation to
RAIMAE the amendment to paragraph
NRERER 80 of HKAS 39
E5ER9
£808 253

P e I A N <K SIS The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs

B BEREERNLZEY does not have any significant impacts on the financial

AEBzEAR A S5 statements of the Group for the current or prior

BN EERTERRE accounting periods except for the impact as described

FRERTE  MHEUT At below.

LRI o

Same Time Holdings Limited




Annual Report 2009-2010 — 2T H Z =T — T F F

BE B Mf3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—FTF= J=1—H[IEE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

2 FEEFBEKE)
() #FEEE ()
() R-FE—FE=f=+—
B B 4 M 89 52T AT IE AT
A EET R FE ()
BHE AN (SRS Bt
BRED25
BEEes A (e 2
AZEARET  BEER
GRMBRENESE B
EHZESHIREERS -
RiT - BBEHEN (S
BT HAZEE R G A Bt
e P PP
EApE

BRETENTNEITATE
BT Bz %5 E
BB ERTHNBITAE
RESEBAREENE
FMRBERERVIKE © 1LE
BHEREREZELABEN
AERBHREAAEES
B -GRUBBRRCREE
AN ERER -

BB BRELR[EE
gl

BRYBRELANSHBWE
ZA RELEIB2HIE
FRRABIZR/RUYBEN
ZHEBEE  REDMBEF
THRERRFEEREZ
BEREE D o TATNERF B
S EA4T D MBREIE
R AR R E |G AR
BIMAD R CEERMER)
RBE XEBXTEZ2HS
ABEHKD M - BREFE
S EAMEENETER
EOEMELLE - EAEBE
B EERBIL MBI ALK
B 2 53R & 2 B (B &E5) ©

Same Time Holdings Limited

2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

39

Standards, amendments and interpretations that
are effective for the year ended 31 March 2010
(Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of financial
statements”

HKAS 1 (Revised) has introduced a number of
terminology changes, including revised titles for the
consolidated financial statements, and has resulted in
a number of changes in presentation and disclosure.
However, HKAS 1 (Revised) has had no impact on
the results reported in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), “Improving disclosures about
financial instruments”

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurement and
liquidity risk. In particular, the amendment requires
disclosure of fair value measurements by level of a
fair value measurement hierarchy. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
revised disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 8, “Operating segments”

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires the
identification of operating segments to be performed
on the same basis as financial information that is
reported internally for the purpose of allocating
resources between segments and assessing their
performance. The predecessor standard, HKAS 14
“Segment reporting”, required the identification of two
sets of segments (business and geographical) using
a risks and returns approach. In the past, the Group’s
primary reporting format was business segments.
The application of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a
redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments
as compared with the primary reportable segments
determined in accordance with HKAS 14 (note 5).
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(i) New and revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2010

The Group has not early adopted the following new

or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2010:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as
part of improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2008’

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 20092

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010°

Related party disclosures”

Consolidated and separate
financial statements'
Classification of rights issues*

Eligible hedged Items’

First-time adoption of HKFRS!

First-time adoption of HKFRS?®

Group cash-settled share-
based payment
transactions®

Business combinations'

Financial instruments®
Prepayments of a minimum
funding requirement’

Distributions of non cash-
assets to owners'

Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity
instruments®
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) New and revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010 and 1 January 2011, as appropriate

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

The directors are in the process of reviewing the
impact to the Group’s financial statements in respect
of the adoption of these new or revised HKFRSs.

(b) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 March.

Subsidiaries are companies over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on

which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(b) Consolidation (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of
an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost
of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (note 2(i)). The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(d) Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

43

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the entities of the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

All foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates prevailing on
the dates of the transactions); and
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
(iii) Group companies (Continued)
— all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount
of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs over their estimated useful lives at the
following annual rates:

Buildings 2—-4%
Plant and machinery 10 - 25%
Leasehold improvements 20 - 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20 — 25%
Motor vehicles 25 - 30%
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Construction in progress represents plant under
construction which is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Construction in progress includes construction expenditure
incurred and other direct costs attributable to the
construction. On completion, the construction in progress
is transferred to appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment. No depreciation is provided for
construction in progress.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2(i)).

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement
of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights represent non-
refundable rental payments for lease of land. These
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided to write off the
amount paid over the period of the lease on a straight-line
basis.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the property.
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(9)

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying
amount of the property only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of investment property is calculated using the
straight-line method to write off its cost less residual value
over its estimated useful life.

The gain or loss arising from the disposal of an investment
property is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment
property and is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

The investment property’s residual value and useful live
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

Leases
(i) Operating lease (as the lessee to operating
leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases net of any incentives received from
the lessor are expensed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(h) Leases (Continued)

(ii) Finance lease

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
lease are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance lease balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are including in borrowings. The interest
element of the finance lease is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The property, plant
and equipment acquired under financial leases are
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
assets and the lease term.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
been available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-
financial assets (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods, work in progress
and raw materials and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost, calculated on the weighted
average basis, comprises materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure. Net realisable value is determined on the
basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling
expenses.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group has entered into certain foreign currency
forward contracts which are not qualified for hedge
accounting. These derivative instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their
fair value. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within “other operating income”
or “other operating expenses”.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as

non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and
deposits held at call with banks.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(P)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns and discounts and
after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue from the manufacturing and sales of products
is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income from letting of investment properties is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits

(t)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution
retirement schemes in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. The contributions of the Group to the defined
contribution retirement schemes are recognised
in the period to which they relate and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the schemes before vesting fully in the
contributions. The contributions of the Group to the
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
and other defined contribution retirement schemes
are recognised in the period to which they relate. The
assets of these schemes are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered
funds.
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2 Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The
group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to their present value.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of the cost of these assets. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the
year in which they are incurred.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the shareholders/directors of the Company.

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants and subsidies are financial assistance
by local municipal government in Mainland China in the
form of transfer of resources to an enterprise to encourage
business development in the local municipality and are
recognised at their fair value where there are reasonable
assurance that the the grants and subsidies will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Grants relating to the construction of plant are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of
the related assets.
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3 HiRREKRERE 3 Financial risk management
(a) MERAKEZE (a) Financial risk factors

AEBNEHSEBRRSES The Group’s activities expose it to various types of
EREERE  SFNERRE = financial risk which includes currency risk, credit risk,
ERR RBESRAREFEZER liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The overall risk
B o REBEMEERMESIETZ management programme of the Group focuses on the
EERBM BTSSR X unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
ERBEFREREEAEBITHER the potential adverse effects it may have on the financial
BNEBETRNEE - performance of the Group.
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REBREZTIREE » fUL K The Group operates internationally and is exposed to

ZEZRRATEAERMES
MMERE  TBFRET
RAR® - SMNERBRRE K
REERS CHRIAEEN
BEUARBIHIEENRE
FEBRKRBERZHCD
BREEREBENEEL
TRAZEECENNEER
ERZEE  SNERBSHIL

foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to EURO and
Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

BHE-

AEBFEEETHEMNERK The Group has certain investments in foreign
BE WEEKNWEEEK operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
ZHNEETE HO R B o currency translation risk.
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Same Time Holdings Limited

At 31 March 2010, if Hong Kong dollars had
weakened/strengthened by 2% (2009: 20%) against
EURO with all other variables held constant, the
post-tax (loss)/profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$33,000 (2009: HK$1,507,000)
lower/higher (2009: higher/lower), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
EURO-denominated trade and other receivables.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

55

Currency risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s entities with functional
currency of Renminbi had net monetary liabilities
denominated in Hong Kong dollar of appropriately
HK$71,009,000 (2009: Nil). If Renminbi had
strengthened/weakened by 3% against (2009:
3.5%) Hong Kong dollar with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax (loss)/profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$2,130,000 (2009: Nil)
higher/lower.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets (other than bank deposits) and interest
income from bank deposits are not significant. As
such, the Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings.
The Group’s borrowings are issued at variable rates
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group currently does not have a hedging
policy on interest rate exposure. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arises.

If interest rates on borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax (loss)/profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$2,605,000 (2009:
HK$1,561,000) higher/lower (2009: lower/higher)
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expenses
on floating rate borrowings.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Credit risk

The Group has some concentration of credit risk in
respect of sales of products with 34% (2009: 31%) of
total sales for the year being attributable to its top five
customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. In addition, collection of
receivables is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances is
minimal as such amounts are placed with banks with
good credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective when managing liquidity is
to maintain a balance between cash resources on
hand and the flexibility through the use of bank
loans and finance leases. It meets its day to day
working capital requirements, capital expenditure
and financing obligations through cash inflow from
operating activities and facilities obtained from banks.
It maintains liquidity by keeping sufficient cash
resources and committed credit lines available from
principal banks.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

57

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2010, the Group breached the
financial covenant requirements of certain banking
facilities (note 29). The total facilities from these
relevant banks were approximately HK$168 million
of which approximately HK$117 million was utilised
as at 31 March 2010. Subsequent to 31 March 2010,
management initiated the repayment of bank loans
amounting to approximately HK$13 million from two
relevant banks out of the above outstanding bank
borrowings of HK$117 million. Besides, management
maintains continuous communication with the Group’s
principal banks on renewal of existing banking
facilities and grant of additional banking facilities. Up
to the date of approval of these financial statements,
a relevant principal bank granted a waiver from strict
compliance of the financial covenant requirements
of its banking facilities amounting to approximately
HK$75 million as at 31 March 2010. Furthermore, this
bank and another relevant principal bank renewed
their banking facilities in July 2010 with an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$98.5 million although
similar financial covenant requirements are imposed
on such banking facilities. In addition, none of these
relevant principal banks have initiated withdrawal of
the banking facilities or requested early repayment
of the utilised facilities. Alternative plans have also
been developed by management to respond to any
changes in facilities available from principal banks.

Management also monitors closely the Group’s
financial performance and liquidity position and
executes measures to improve the Group’s cash
flows. These measures include cessation of business
with poor performance and disposal of the related
property, plant and equipment, proactive discussion
with customers for a better profit margin, development
of business from new customers and implementation
of other cost control measures.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

EEEERAEENED Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
R RS ESEE B liquidity reserve, which comprises undrawn borrowing
ARINERENIRE S facility and cash and cash equivalents, based on the

EReEY  FAEEERHE
HEBEELRA » RBRRR
KReR{ITEEHENDAFE
FERHARTEEDNN -
EEEERYEREER
BoMBMAINE L I
BE R R REFERR o
EEEYHEMATRERS
MERMERTRNERE
BREEE  ReMUEs
EBREENRBES -

EECEMEEZRAR
ReRAE  ZFEEDRRK
RAR2RITEEEMNDAR
EREHRFHRITEER
R EBRBEEZARTER
RMEBHZTHEZ - m
EEHZRITEE - BEE
ERORFTELFXE  @F
TREHEBRUBRE
EREESNAFEFET
(Bl ERRAL EFH
HEARBZHE)  &&F
EEHIELERANES
LENEERIREBZ
EA =R

Same Time Holdings Limited

expected operating cash flows and on the assumption
that the existing banking facilities of the Group will
continue to be available or can be replaced by new
facilities. Management also monitors closely the
changes in sales orders, material and labour costs
by comparing them to the forecasts, and keep alert
of any material changes resulted from the uncertainty
of the global economic recovery from the financial
crisis which may have impacts to the Group’s liquidity
position.

The directors consider that, based on the renewed
banking facilities up to the date of approval of these
financial statements, the ongoing support from
principal banks and existing and new customers
and baring any unforeseen adverse changes to the
operations and financial performance of the Group
such as substantial increase in material and labour
costs and appreciation of Renminbi, the Group should
be able to generate sufficient cash flows to cover its
operating costs and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial

liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

1225 R 2E55 R
1EUT Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2and5
1 year years years
HK$ HK$ HK$
RIFE-FF At 31 March 2010
=A=+—H
B REMENT  Trade and other payables 356,827,792 - -
RITER Bank loans 362,458,138 64,409,680 89,754,171
MEREZRE Obligations under finance leases 52,262,911 21,034,148 4,488,000
waE Total 771,548,841 85,443,828 94,242,171
R-ZETAE At 31 March 2009
=A=+—H
ESREMEMNR  Trade and other payables 312,719,436 - -
RITER Bank loans 175,171,589 40,511,618 51,519,309
MEHEZAE Obligations under finance leases 58,925,280 43,361,683 13,209,444
b Total 546,816,305 83,873,301 64,728,753

Same Time Holdings Limited

59




=

=

R

z
=

E — T F £ 3§ Annual Report 2009-2010

3

AR B Ilﬁﬁf—[ Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-E—-FH= J=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

IS ERERE (&)

(a)

(b)

BEEEE ()

(IV) mEiﬁfﬂ/fﬁ%(
rEBEFREF (_ﬁﬁn
FREETEERTA
EEEEBERAHEI2E

BREH R-T—2F
ZA=+-8 HZAH
BEAFRARRSER

161,479 T - R=-ZE R
F=ZA=+—0 KEEHE
FEXRMREFESR
6,000,000/ jt & 8 B K I
] & F]H £ A29,400,000
BT

EREBRE?
Z!-‘%lﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬂl% C BIRFE
EEREHELE  DARREM

EHMAHMESSEARM
Mit - FSEFRENERNERE
LUBRE & R AS

RTHEESEHABRELER &
BREEAERINTRROKRE
HE ARRDIKNEARRE
BROFRILEEENREKE
o NEERBEAINERHI A
BARER BRETETRITASE
FAKEENRTEEMRTHAN
BE o

HENEMAT K ~EEF
REELREREER - kX
BREBFERULERTE
BB FERREE (@%ﬁ?ﬁ
BRANNABRIFERHER
WA ERIRITER &fﬂﬁﬁ
RRRT BAEZAEEEEBXR
Frolz ] e

Same Time Holdings Limited

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
All of the Group’s net (2009: gross) settled derivative
financial instruments are due to be settled within 12
months of the balance sheet date. At 31 March 2010,
the contracts require undiscounted cash outflows
of HK$161,479. At 31 March 2009, the contracts
require undiscounted contractual cash outflows of
HK$6,000,000 and undiscounted contractual cash
inflows of HK$29,400,000.

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
issue new

shareholders, return capital to shareholders,

shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Except for the
compliance of certain bank covenant requirements for
maintaining the Group’s banking facilities, the Group is not

subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net borrowings divided by total capital. Net
borrowings are calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown in the
balance sheet) less pledged bank deposits, and cash at
banks and in hand. Total capital is calculated as “equity”,
as shown in the balance sheet.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31 March 2010 and 2009 were as
follows:

2010 2009

BT BT

HK$ HK$

BEE Total borrowings 559,265,147 356,189,163
A EEARITER Less: Pledged bank deposits (70,733,013) -
RTFRRRE Cash at banks and in hand (71,857,684) (52,747,732)

B FE Net borrowings 416,674,450 303,441,431
mER Total equity 385,039,791 429,480,590
aEk= Gearing ratio 108% 71%

RZE-ZFTF=ZA=+—-8W
BELEERLAFTERELAEH
AEEHEEREEIARKREM
FILERENEE KA -

AAEELEREAMAEERZ
Z-ZEF=ZA=+—HERT
ETROTNWRFRAEFHEER
Mo EEEFZREBHEA
BEEENGE - BFEERRNE
BRAEFNW®EBUARERNE
BN EF UEE 7 it R A
BRAENEED KEALLRE
LUB D R FEAFRERFET
RINEBMRERESZENTTE

DNFEMF
EERHSEENEHIA (F
MEEBTHNAUHBERS) 2
AFERBEEBNTHRE
PR - AEERENHBEEN
mERESERERE-

REMER 2 D FENE - IED
SR REBFTERPRRARK -

The increase in gearing ratio during the year ended 31
March 2010 resulted primarily from the additional loans
for financing the construction and operation of the Jiangxi
factory.

In response to the increase in gearing ratio and the
breach of certain bank covenant requirements as at 31
March 2010 as set out in note 29 below, the directors are
considering various means to improve the gearing ratio,
including but not limited to the cessation of business with
poor performance and disposal of the related property,
plant and equipment, the improvement of profit margin by
discussing with existing customers on pricing, securing
new customers so as to better utilise the available
production capacity, implementing automation to reduce
reliance on manual processes, and the study of different
debt and equity finance raising alternatives.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading
and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price.

The fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated

using the expected future payments discounted at market
interest rates.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The carrying amounts less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a
maturity of less than one year, including trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables and current borrowings approximate their fair

(c)

values.

The derivative financial assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value under level 2 using forward exchange market
rates of the same remaining tenor at the balance sheet
date.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group has made substantial investments in property,
plant and equipment for the manufacturing of printed
circuit boards and electronic products. Changes in
technology on machinery or products to be manufactured
may cause a change in the estimated useful lives or value
of these assets.

The Group evaluates whether there is any event or change
in circumstances which indicates that the carrying amounts
of property, plant and equipment may not be recoverable.
Whenever such events or changes in circumstances occur,
these assets are reviewed for impairment in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 2(i).
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(@)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the management
of the Group plans to cease the production of two
subsidiaries in Mainland China, included in the electronic
products segment, in the coming year. The directors
conducted a review of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and estimated that a number of those
assets were impaired, on the basis that the recoverable
amount is below its carrying value, by HK$21,005,900.
The recoverable amounts of such property, plant and
equipment have been determined based on its fair value
less costs to sell. The fair value is determined based on
current prices in active markets for similar assets in the
same conditions. If the estimated selling price used in the
calculation for the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment had been 5% lower than management’s
estimates at 31 March 2010, the group would have
recognised a further impairment on property, plant and
equipment by HK$304,518 and would need to reduce
the carrying value of property, plant and equipment by
HK$304,518.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
may be uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax provisions in the financial period in which such
determination is made.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

Income taxes (Continued)

Recognition of deferred income tax asset, which principally
relates to tax losses of certain subsidiaries, depends on
the management’s expectation of future taxable profit
that will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. The
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers
and other debtors and the current market condition
and requires the use of judgements and estimates.
Management reassesses the provision at each balance
sheet date.

Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.
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5 Revenue and segment information
(a) Application of HKFRS 8 “Operating segments”

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating segments”
for the current year. HKFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. In contrast, the predecessor standard, HKAS
14 “Segment reporting”, required an entity to identify two
sets of segments (business and geographical) using a
risks and returns approach, with the entity’s “system of
internal financial reporting to key management personnel”
serving only as the starting point for the identification of
such segments.

In the past, the Group’s primary reporting format was
business segments. The application of HKFRS 8 has
not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments as compared with the primary reportable
segments determined in accordance with HKAS 14,
nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis
of measurement of segment profit or loss. The Group’s
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore
identical to the business segments under HKAS 14,
namely:

Electronic products — manufacturing and selling of
consumer electronic
products

manufacturing and selling of

Printed circuit boards
printed circuit boards
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—EF= f=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)
(b) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the chief
operating decision-maker monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, and
expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and
the expenses incurred by those segments. All corporate
general income and corporate general administrative
expenses are allocated to unallocated income and
unallocated costs respectively.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights, receivables
and operating cash and exclude investment property,
leasehold land and buildings held at corporate office.
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and
borrowings and exclude current income tax liabilities and
deferred income tax liabilities.
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5 WEKkDEBER (&) 5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)
(b) ¥B EEREBENI I (E) (b) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
AEBEAFENRERES A segment analysis of the revenue and results for the year
DE2DMWMT - is as follows:

g Revenue

DEEE Segment results
RAEBA Unallocated income
KD E A Unallocated costs
KeEEE Operating loss

B WA Finance income

& A Finance costs
BRATEHAIEE Loss before income tax
S BIEX H Income tax expense

IR R AE{E 518 Loss attributable to shareholders
£ 0R R Bad debts written off

EFERERUEHRSE  Clawing back of value added
ZEOKBRFEZ tax (“VAT”) and customs duties
BERRER  EBH on imported equipment previously
EBERMERA waived and inventories upon

cessation of electronic products

business
FEREH Depreciation and amortisation
BRERAHEFERE Impairment loss on slow moving and
BB obsolete inventories
¥ - BEKRERNE  Impairment loss on property,
&8 plant and equipment

FTETEZBEASHE  Net unrealised loss on derivatives,
B BEETETIEE  included in net gain on derivatives
1,270,501 7T A of HK$1,270,501 (note 6)
(Ktzt6)

ETERERE Provision for employee redundancy costs
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5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)
(b) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

—EENF
2009
BEYEM EN il 6% 2% AR
Electronic  Printed circuit 58
products boards Group
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
W= Revenue 91,262,087 1,020,369,862 1,111,631,949
DEEE Segment results (1,752,544) 62,558,604 60,806,060
ROBBA Unallocated income 1,613,315
KD B Unallocated costs (10,397,805)
RERR Operating profit 52,021,570
BMEWA Finance income 18,422 139,662 158,084
wE A Finance costs (245,625)  (16,043,080) (16,288,705)
BRETEHAIZF Profit before income tax 35,890,949
FrSRES H Income tax expense (470,962)  (12,254,736)  (12,725,698)
PR 5 PE A 2 A Profit attributable to shareholders 23,165,251
i BRI PR Bad debts written off 61,500 4,190,147 4,251,647
TEREHE Depreciation and amortisation 4,982,847 63,494,212 68,477,059
BRERFHEFERE Impairment loss on slow moving and
18 obsolete inventories - 542,611 542,611
FTETREZEREBRIW  Netunrealised gain on derivatives,
& BEEMEIERF  included in net gain on derivatives
31,164,750 T X of HK$1,164,750 (note 6)
(Kizte6) - 6,489,011 6,489,011
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5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(b) #E BEREEBEMNDE(E) (b) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
BEERBEBIHIWNAT : A segmental analysis of total assets and total liabilities is
as follows:

REM=R
HELHRET
APEBEEEE

REEBRE:
PR B T B USME IR
Rtk RBEE

BoBEE
TEMBEE
EHMMEHAR
ELEFEHAE
RXOBEEEARE

naE

Same Time Holdings Limited

Total segment assets
Investment property
Leasehold land and buildings
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Total assets include:
Addition to non-current assets
(other than financial instruments)

Total segment liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Current income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities
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5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(b) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

—EEAE=ZA=1+—8H

31 March 2009

EFEM EN Jol 4 35 4R
Electronic  Printed circuit 35
products boards Group
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
BoHMEE Total segment assets 56,623,325 1,089,579,138 1,146,202,463
TTEMBEE Derivative financial assets - 1,426,036 1,426,036
REME Investment property 326,572
HETHRET Leasehold land and buildings 13,055,735
RPBMEBEE Unallocated corporate assets 1,746,856
BEE Total assets 1,162,757,662
HWEERE . Total assets include:
BREB T ELSMEMA  Addition to non-current assets
HtERBEE (other than financial instruments) 6,404,935 319,774,099 326,179,034
BAWEBE Total segment liabilities 14,758,250 661,693,961 676,452,211
TEGHKEE Derivative financial liabilities - 823,214 823,214
EHEHEE Current income tax liabilities 46,581,679
RILFBHEE Deferred income tax liabilities 7,180,213
KPEBEBERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,239,755
wafE Total liabilities
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5 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(c)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong
Kong, Macao and Mainland China. The revenue from
external customers in Hong Kong, Macao and Mainland
China for year ended 31 March 2010 is HK$591,963,369
(2009: HK$745,385,100), and the total of its revenue from
external customers in other countries is HK$339,616,554
(2009: HK$366,246,849).

At 31 March 2010 and 2009, all of the non-current assets
are located in Hong Kong, Macao and Mainland China.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2010, revenues of
HK$100,822,085 (2009: HK$127,021,831) are derived
from a single external customer. These revenues are
attributable to the printed circuit board products.

H b & & U A 6 Other operating income
2010 2009
BT B
HK$ HK$
BFA B WA 288  Amortisation of deferred income on government grants 204,313 419,105
HEFEUHIEMNERE Claims from customers for cancelled orders 748,306 -
HEME  MEKRZEWE  Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 231,398
RS B Government subsidies 1,666,056 -
TETIEFWE (MEE5) Net gain on derivatives (note 5) 1,270,501 1,164,750
HEBA Rental income 168,000 168,000
BEREE Sale of manufacturing by-products 3,733,530 1,834,770
Hit Sundries 651,013 594,087
8,441,719 4,412,110
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7 K& (BB B 7 Operating (loss)/profit
2010 2009
BT BT
HK$ HK$
“e (BB /BRENK Operating (loss)/profit is stated after charging
UT&E : the following:
ZEM 2 Auditor’s remuneration
- REERE — Provision for current year 1,150,000 1,060,000
-HEEREBETR — Under-provision in prior years - 80,000
HEtwRtmFERAE2#S  Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights 616,370 403,171
AR MR (7 2E) Bad debts written off (Note) 2,672,748 4,251,647
EFEREBUEREZED  Clawing back of VAT and customs duties on
HEREEIERKER - imported equipment previously waived
HEEKERMER and inventories upon cessation of electronic
(M) products business (Note) 8,555,376 -
EEFERAK Cost of inventories sold 818,258,787 945,058,617
wE Depreciation
-BENE BERRE — Owned property, plant and equipment 72,603,528 55,472,448
-MEHEZNE  BE — Leased property, plant and equipment
ST 23,554,649 12,592,049
-REM=E — Investment property 9,394 9,391
¥ BEKRERERSE  Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 21,005,900 -
BRRFHEFERERSR Impairment loss on slow moving and obsolete
(Hit22) inventories (note 22) 1,604,404 542,611
HEWE - BMERREEE  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
(BfEt) equipment (Note) 110,535 -
ELEEFHE Net exchange loss 6,078,001 1,975,390
THREFLERE Operating lease rental in respect of properties 3,725,763 4,828,454
REMFE XM Outgoings in respect of investment property - 21,144
BETEHERE (WF) Provision for employee redundancy costs (Note) 1,138,682 -
Btit - EEBREIAGERERANIE Note: These expenses have been included in “other operating
&z o expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
Income.
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ETIRA(TEBREENS) 8 Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments)
2010 2009
i BT
HK$ HK$
IE- %N &R EAMER  Wages, salaries, bonus and other allowances 117,960,069 147,815,845
BIREA-REMNKTE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 5,314,578 4,801,357
BEEF Termination benefits 1,072,251 782,775
ETEHNERE Provision for employee redundancy costs 1,138,682 -
125,485,580 153,399,977

REMRLAEEFE
AEERE—EHAEFEAESTE
REREIEAESFEKRE  £@IZ
BEEEBABRZ%EHER &S
HRELASEEES A1,0008 T °
EEESAEBEARBIES0008T
TARBRESTTEELBEMRR &
BeitdlzftR—BXE2EE
NEBESIFARERR -

AEESRE-HOCERFMLAES
SFERAR R RERRABEET
g UMM —ETTF+-A—HAMNUA
ZRER2BEBEEMA -ZEREETE
B2 TRESHARRENZH R
- ZRRTEBEBTEER B
ESEE REZHRETE EEXR
BEERZEENERAH 25%MH
R EEEFSERENEEHAZ
BB BB 1 0% Wz 1B R LUK 85 48
FZRERR -BE-ZT-ZTFR=
ZENF=ZA=+—-HLEFE F&
9 3 £ 0% W TR 5 0 SR BR o

AEESHARTHERNMLE TRAK
g HARRBNEEADTHRAER
ZEI#HEZADHELHR - TH
REEHEEEARE 2 RARAKE
RAETRPEAMZFFERKER
BfE-

Defined contribution pension schemes
For the MPF Scheme, the contributions of the Group are at 5%

of the employees’ relevant income as defined in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance up to a maximum
of HK$1,000 per employee per month. The employees
contribute a corresponding amount to the MPF Scheme if their
relevant income is more than HK$5,000 per month. The MPF
contributions are fully and immediately vested in the employees
as accrued benefits once they are paid.

The Group also operates a defined contribution pension
scheme, which is an exempted scheme (“the Exempted
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and provides retirement benefits to its employees
in Hong Kong who joined the Group prior to 1 December
2000. These employees can elect to join the MPF Scheme
or to remain as a member of the Exempted Scheme. The
assets of the Exempted Scheme are held under provident
funds managed by an independent administrator. Under the
Exempted Scheme, both the employers and employees are
required to contribute 5% of the employees’ basic salaries on
a monthly basis. Where there are employees who leave the
Exempted Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount
of forfeited contributions. There were no forfeited contributions
utilised by the Group to reduce existing level of contributions
for each of the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.

The Group also contributes to retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China at a percentage of their salaries
in compliance with the requirements of the respective municipal
governments in Mainland China. The municipal governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of the Group in Mainland
China.
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10 EEREREEAEHMS
REEZHMEHFIMT :

ExaR

Name of director

“E-Ff
ERRALE
WAL L L
o % &2 £
BXRAE
MEELE
FRRUL

B

—EENF
ERALE
WARLZ L
MmELZ L
RAREE
MES %L
FXRut

B

2010

Mr YIP Sum Yin

Madam YU Hung Min
Madam YU Pei Yi

Mr LAl Wing Leung, Peter
Mr LAM Kwok Cheong
Madam LEE Mei Ling

Total

2009

Mr YIP Sum Yin

Madam YU Hung Min
Madam YU Pei Yi

Mr LAl Wing Leung, Peter
Mr LAM Kwok Cheong
Madam LEE Mei Ling

Total

t OHMBRANBERREREHEM -

Same Time Holdings Limited

we
Fees
BT
HK$

Eadl|
Salaries
BT
HK$

& LRIk

BTN

Employer’s

H #t1 48 #* contributions
Other to pension

benefits* schemes
BT BT
HK$ HK$

10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
The remuneration of each director is set out below:

@
Total
B
HK$

- 2,160,000 1,021,314 12,000 3,193,314
- 1,847,156 446,848 12,000 2,306,004
- 407,156 - - 407,156
100,000 - - - 100,000
100,000 - - - 100,000
100,000 - - - 100,000
300,000 4,414,312 1,468,162 24,000 6,206,474

Other benefits include insurance premium and motor vehicle

expenses.

74



Annual Report 2009-2010 — 2T H Z =T — T F F

BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

10 EEREREEAEME (&)

AEBAFERLERSHMA L 2

10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
(Continued)
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals in the

SHEEBEOT Group for the year are as follows:
2010 2009
BT BT
HK$ HK$
BEXEe BREEE Basic salaries, housing allowances, other
Hi 2R ENA & allowances and benefits in kind 7,090,766 7,584,535
S RBNANT : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
AZ
Number of
individuals
2010 2009
B & 2 5 Emolument bands
500,00178 7t £1,000,00078 7T HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 3 3
2,000,00158 7t £2,500,00058 jT HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 1
2,500,00178 jt £3,000,00078 JT HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 1 -
3,000,00178 7t £3,500,00058 7T HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 - 1

BEeEFHMNEZEALTEEWNEE
E(ZZZEAF WB) Bes
#5,150,306 B T (ZEZE N F :
5,499,318 L) ENAEEH SR o

RER AEBYBEQEETRAER
EEFMALIXAME  ERE/FMA
AEERCREFERRERL 2

B(ZZEAF 8 - AFR  LE
EENRYUFAEREEAME (=2
ThFEHE) -

Same Time Holdings Limited

The five highest paid individuals include two (2009: two)
directors whose emoluments for acting as directors amounting
to HK$5,150,306 (2009: HK$5,499,318) are included in
directors’ emoluments.

During the year, the Group did not pay to the directors or the
five highest paid individuals any inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or a compensation for loss of office (2009:
Nil). No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2009: Nil).
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11 ERA 11 Finance income

2010 2009
BT BT
HK$ HK$
BITFEWA Bank interest income 216,269 158,084

12 @& WA 12 Finance costs
2010 2009
BT BT
HK$ HK$

BRAFREIHMERE BT Interest on bank loans and overdrafts
BXRRBEL2FEXH wholly repayable within five years 15,685,008 13,991,965
RMERE2FEHD Interest element of finance leases 5,532,982 6,610,842
B & A Finance costs 21,217,990 20,602,807
B REREEERLLEE  Less: Amounts capitalised on qualifying assets - (4,314,102)
W E AR Total finance costs 21,217,990 16,288,705

/6
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13 FriSHiE X

ERFSGHIDRBEAFEMTER
BERMEBE16.5% (ZF
16.5% ) BB LEHE - BINRF 2B K
DEBASEREEBAEERZE

TRIRMETE o

HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

13 Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%

ENF: (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the

year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

2010 2009
BT BT
HK$ HK$
EHREH Current income tax
-BBNER - Hong Kong profits tax
NEERE Provision for current year 5,122,589 10,477,381
AEEHRERE Over-provision for prior years (3,398,379) (1,167,723)
1,724,210 9,309,658
—BINELE — Overseas taxation
REERE Provision for current year 3,853,557 3,670,077
FEERETR Under-provision for prior years 3,967,044 -
7,820,601 3,670,077
9,544,811 12,979,735
BIEFTSH (M2E30) Deferred income tax (note 30)
-ERMHERWNBAMER - Origination and reversal of temporary differences (530,882) 170,777
- BB EEHYIELRE - Attributable to a change in tax rate
%3 - (424,814)
(530,882) (254,037)
9,013,929 12,725,698

Same Time Holdings Limited
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13 FIEHEX H (&) 13 Income tax expense (Continued)
REBEBRFAESHAN (§8B) &2 The tax on (loss)/profit before income tax of the Group differs
FleBEEBRERAEB (MAEE from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate
FTEEREEME)BEMAEZE of Hong Kong, where the Group performs its principal activities,
W EZENT as follows:

2010 2009

BT B

HK$ HK$
BRETEE A (BR), /B (Loss)/profit before income tax (37,683,956) 35,890,949
BHE165%(ZEFAE:  Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%)

16.5%) st E 2 H1E (6,217,855) 5,922,005
BERB WA Income not subject to tax (2,348,811) (5,316,418)
AU ZZH Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 8,478,451 7,322,311
AERACEREE Temporary differences not recognised 6,237,187 (2,571,767)
AEEELREHEE Write back of deferred income tax for prior years (384,887) (76,259)
FRABRRIAZHBEER Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses (288,232) -
RERZBKER Tax losses not recognised 1,804,458 9,434,526
AFEEBEBTR,/ (BEEME) Under/(over)-provision for prior years 568,665 (1,167,723)
BEHMEMEEZHAEL  Effect on deferred income tax liabilities resulting

FERedEzEm from a decrease in tax rate - (424,814)
REMAEEEEEZ Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating

WEADTABEZHE in other jurisdiction 1,164,953 (396,163)
FEHETH Income tax expense 9,013,929 12,725,698
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13 FIEHIE L (&)

FEAREMBENEHRELENMINEH
CERSBE(HIERECERS
BED  AHFEEMIIEREDE
REMADORTER > HEBRERN
FER F-—ENE-_FRBLERM
BH FEZFZFRER¥EKLE
Frie® - KR EZER=ZZEZENE—A
— B EERR o IRIEEI T 24[2008] 233% -
IEREEERBUMNERELEM
BREAREEZZETHRABES
2008F B ELEELEEKHES
N B LR BEHRHATHFS G
BRECEMBBIBAETHRSEN
MERBOINERECEMEBR L)
HERBHEK (BREEERER
M ERESIHEHRREBHTAK A
REEEBHERRR—FERMER
FEAZHBARNER (BT
BYEMOEBR)  MEHR—BEHE
AACEZEHHEHRER  HER
REMATRBTE U BEEEB AT
FENMBHNBAEBEEZRIRYN
4,000,000 T EECIABE=
E-ZEF=FA=+—HLEEEZRSE
B mERNA ©

EENKRBCERAEEELKE
AAEBEHFREERG 2R KR
REE - RALELMERERVBEE -
BENREHBRFE -EREMETSB
EEEFREHFRHE 20,500,000
T HECIABE-ZZEENF=A
E+-BLEFEZHFREMBHRERR -
R-ZE—ZEF=A=Z+—HILEFE
W R B AL MEEIMEE -

13 Income tax expense (Continued)

The Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China for
Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises
(“FEIT Law”), which was annulled on 1 January 2008, allowed a
foreign investment enterprise of a production nature scheduled
to operate for a period of not less than ten years to be
exempted from income tax in the first and second years from
its first profit-making year and allowed a 50% reduction in the
third to fifth years. According to Guoshuifa [2008] No. 23, with
regard to foreign investment enterprises eligible to exemption
or reduction preferential tax polices under the FEIT Law
regime, if their nature of business or term of operation changes
in 2008 or thereafter and as a result, cannot fulfil the conditions
for tax exemption or reduction set out in the FEIT Law, such
enterprises shall be required to claw back the tax benefits they
have enjoyed during the period of tax exemption and reduction
in accordance with the FEIT Law. As the management decided
to cease the business of two subsidiaries in Mainland China
included in the electronic products segment in the coming year
and one of which has enjoyed the tax benefits but its operation
period is expected to be less than ten years, additional claw
back provision for the tax benefits of approximately HK$4.0
million has been recorded in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”) has
questioned the basis of tax reporting for certain transactions
adopted by certain subsidiaries of the Group in prior years.
The matter has not been resolved with the IRD as at the date
of approval of these financial statements. Current income tax
of approximately HK$20.5 million have been recorded in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2008 and no further provision has been made during
the year ended 31 March 2010.
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RERENG (BB BF
BEREML (BB BIEGERE
AE B BRE P IRE 2 E18278,666
B (ZEZENF 1 108,7798 T) °

i E
EZERRTRBEBE_ZT-Z5=
A=E+—HLEERE(ZZEZENEF:
/| R-ZEBEZhE=A=+—-H8H1L
FER AQAFAECRAZZEENE
ERBRESRKRETFAATR
R BEEEH1,138,3708 T °

TR (E58E) B

BREKX (BB BADREERE
Z PR 3R FE 15 /&5 1846,697,88578 7T (=
ZE2NF B F23,165,2518 ) &
FRE #TEBEMRS6,918,5208% (=
ZENF 56,918,520 ) 5t & ©

HRAMEELREEEEBR &
BHE_Z-ZFER-ZFTNEFE=AR
S+-BEFEZEREE (BB
BENERPzERELS (BB &
AAERE o

Same Time Holdings Limited
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(Loss)/profit attributable to shareholders
(Loss)/profit attributable to shareholders includes a loss of

HK$278,666 (2009: HK$108,779) which is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: Nil). The 2008 final
dividend of HK$0.02 per share totalling HK$1,138,370 was paid
to the shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2009.

(Loss)/earnings per share
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based

on loss attributable to shareholders of the Company of
HK$46,697,885 (2009: profit of HK$23,165,251) and
56,918,520 (2009: 56,918,520) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended
31 March 2010 and 2009 was the same as the basic (loss)/
earnings per share for the respective years, as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue.
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17 9% - BERRE-&H

17 Property, plant and equipment — Group

HENE
I
RERF
Leasehold
HE improvements,
R furniture, KE ERIRE
i £ Plantand fixtures and Motor  Construction @it
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles  in progress Total
B B B B B B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
RZFENEMA-H At 1 April 2008
KA Cost 36,674,765 696,726,669 117,799,130 10,212,957 91,047,285 952,460,806
ZENERAESR Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (12,268,871)  (313223,151)  (86,810,398)  (6,708,103) - (419,010523)
REFE Net book amount 24,405,894 383,503,518 30,988,732 3,504,854 91,047,285 533,450,283
BEZSEAE Year ended 31 March 2009
ZRZt+-HLEEE
BOREFE Opening net book amount 24,405,894 383,503,518 30,988,732 3,504,854 91,047,285 533,450,283
ERER Exchange differences 357,090 15,218,252 439,845 71,635 7,222,800 23,309,622
hE Additions - 236,301,163 24,753,693 902,189 64,221,989 326,179,034
g% Transfer 157,740,156 - - - (157,740,156) -
e Disposals - (580,063) (101,694) - - (681,757)
& Depreciation (1,168466)  (54,827,755)  (10,260519)  (1,807,757) - (68,064,497)
HARHFE Closing net book amount 181,334,674 579,615,115 45,820,057 2,670,921 4,751,918 814,192,685
RZFZAEZAZ+—H At 31 March 2009
KA Cost 194,772,609 948,919,431 143,240,734 10,599,109 4,751,918 1,302,283,801
ZENERAESR Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (13437,035)  (369,304,316)  (97,420,677)  (7,928,188) - (488,091,116)
REFE Net book amount 181,334,674 579,615,115 45,820,057 2,670,921 4,751,918 814,192,685
HEZ3-%% Year ended 31 March 2010
ZAZt+-HL%E
BORAFE Opening net book amount 181,334,674 579,615,115 45,820,057 2,670,921 4,751,918 814,192,685
EREH Exchange differences 621,619 1,861,734 80,604 5,280 5,394 2,574,631
"B Additions - 105,272,598 3,924,386 1,682,926 35,191,608 146,071,518
EEF] Transfer 39,948,920 - - - (39,948,920) -
HESBWZ4() Impairment loss (note 4(a)) (2,170,734)  (16,264,787)  (2,570,379) - - (21,005,900)
e Disposals - (948,721) (6,640)  (101,638) - (1,056,999)
& Depreciation (4404,019)  (78,965,790)  (11,200456)  (1,488,912) - (96,158,177)
BAREEFE Closing net book amount 215,330,460 590,570,149 35,948,572 2,768,577 - 844,617,758
RZFE-FE=A=+—H At 31 March 2010
KA Cost 235,352,008  1,054,401,591 147,292,946 11,737,674 - 1,448,784,219
ZENERAESR Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (20,021,548)  (463,831442)  (111,344,374)  (8,969,097) - (604,166,461)
REFE Net book amount 215,330,460 590,570,149 35,948,572 2,768,577 - 844,617,758
81
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17 Y% -BERBHE-—EBE (&) 17 Property, plant and equipment — Group
(Continued)

(a) RZZE—-ZEF=A=+—8" (a) At 31 March 2010, the net book amount of property,
AEEBERTEREKFE R Z plant and equipment pledged to banks to secure bank
WE BERIRBEREFEA loans of the Group amounting to HK$428,149,585 (2009:
428,149,585B T (ZEF N F : HK$2,528,287) (note 33).

2,528,287:8 7T) (A13#33) °

by RZZE—-ZEF=A=+—8" (b) At 31 March 2010, the net book amount of property, plant
EELUREHSEEE2WE and equipment held by the Group under finance leases
HMERZLBEZEREFES amounting to HK$151,181,265 (2009: HK$197,181,423).

151,181,2658 T (ZZEFHF :
197,181,42338 7T) °

(c) UREEBRFPBERKEZEFTE (c) The buildings with net book amounts of HK$3,042,289
EFEMRKXA3,042,289 BT (= (2009: HK$3,194,812) and HK$212,288,171 (2009:
EENFE 3,194,812 1) & HK$178,139,862) are held under leases of 10 to 50 years
212,288,171t (ZEENF : in Hong Kong and Mainland China respectively.

178,139,8628 5t) » & LL10Z&
S50ERHMEERAEE -

18 lHE Lt K L ith{F AR 18 Leasehold land and land use rights
&
Group
2010 2009
i BT
HK$ HK$
REH At the beginning of the year 24,675,999 24,649,173
ERE%E Exchange differences 59,758 429,997
B Additions 7,364,431 -
ey Amortisation (616,370) (403,171)
RER At the end of the year 31,483,818 24,675,999
2010 2009
i BT
HK$ HK$
NRERZHE L Leasehold land situated in Hong Kong

—10E50F I E — leases of 10 to 50 years 10,819,417 11,132,173

NARBEAEZTHEA®E  Land use rights situated in Mainland China
—-10250F HiNEE — leases of 10 to 50 years 20,664,401 13,543,826
31,483,818 24,675,999

Same Time Holdings Limited
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18 HEL R T FEHAE (8) 18 Leasehold land and land use rights (Continued)
R-ZZBE-ZFEFE=ZHA=+—8 " A& At 31 March 2010, the net book amount of leasehold land and
BRITEREFRzEHEL R+ land use rights pledged to banks to secure bank loans of the
Hh {55 A % BR T JF {8 520,545,67478 T Group amounting to HK$20,545,674 (2009: HK$8,197,209)
(ZZBZAF 8,197,200 7T) (ff:F (note 33).

33) °
19 REWE (BF) 19 Investment property (Building)
£HE
Group
2010 2009
HE T BT
HK$ HK$
RERD At the beginning of the year 326,572 335,963
wE Depreciation (9,394) (9,391)
RER At the end of the year 317,178 326,572
R-ZE-ZFEF=ZA=Z+—08 KM@ At 31 March 2010, the fair value of the investment property
B 51,357,478 B T (ZZEZENF : (including leasehold land) with a carrying amount of
1,394,988 ) 2 REWME (B HK$1,357,478 (2009: HK$1,394,988) based on the directors’
HETH) BEER/FTZ2A2FEA estimation was approximately HK$4,000,000 (20009:
#14,000,0008 T (ZEZE N F : HK$3,300,000).

3,300,000/8 7T) °

MEDINREE  LLH10ES0FHE The property is held under a lease of 10 to 50 years in Hong
EXEE - Kong.
20 AMBARIZRE 20 Interests in subsidiaries
YA

Company

2010 2009

BT BT

HK$ HK$
FETRG BERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 57,165,073 57,165,073
P& MY 8 A RIFRIB (K ita) Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a) 152,114,120 170,655,723
HORESEER Less: Provision for impairment losses (4,259,270) (22,135,694)

147,854,850 148,520,029

205,019,923 205,685,102
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20 Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

R-ZE-ZFFE=A=+—-HBZFEMH

HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March

BABWT : 2010:
BEITRE/
HAMmEA
A E 1B Particulars
Place of TEEH of issued share
NEAH incorporation/ Principal capital/ it s
Name operation activities registered capital Interest held
2010 2009
% %
EEBE:
Shares held directly:
Same Time International (B.V.1.) RBREUHE REER 50,0008 % & K 7 100 100
Limited British Virgin Investment holding FR1ER
Islands 50,000 ordinary
shares of US$1 each
BEss:
Shares held indirectly:
REARZERERERD AP REIR HERHE ZMER 100 100
Dongguan Red Broad Limited "2 Mainland China E1 o 45 3% AR 250,000,000 T
Manufacture and sale of Registered capital
printed circuit boards of HK$250,000,000
ERFEFERLA? hER RERHEE AMER 100 100
Dongguan Same Time Electronics Mainland China ETEM 35,000,000/ 7T
Limited "2 Manufacture and sale Registered capital of
of electronic products HK$35,000,000

84
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20 RMB AR 2RE (&)

20 Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

BRITHRA/
HAMER
i E 1B Particulars
Place of TELH of issued share
NS incorporation/ Principal capital/ Bk =
Name operation activities registered capital Interest held
2010 2009
% %
BERE (8
Shares held indirectly (Continued):
ZREXERLT BB NERE AREBRER 100 100
Dyford Industries Limited Hong Kong Property holding 138 70 % 200,0008%
ERFRELERD
SR1IET
4 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each and
200,000 non-voting
deferred shares
of HK$1 each
AR CIF) BRAER REIR HERHE ZMER 100 100
Red Board (Jiangxi) Limited" 2 Mainland China £ ol 4 B8 AR 373,969,000 7T
Manufacture and sale of Registered capital
printed circuit boards of HK$373,969,000
ARBRAF BB THE LRI R AR IREBRHER 100 100
Red Board Limited Hong Kong Sale of printed 178 70 % 5,000,0008%
circuit boards BERERELRND
SR1IET

Same Time Holdings Limited
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20 Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

BETRE/
AMmEL
AR Particulars
Place of TELH of issued share
NS incorporation/ Principal capital/ Bk s
Name operation activities registered capital Interest held
2010 2009
% %
BERF (8 !
Shares held indirectly (Continued):
AREMBRFERREERAT 4] HE R AR & A& 100,0008) % 100 100
Red Board Macao Commercial Macao Sale of printed Registered capital
Offshore Limited circuit boards of MOP$100,000
Same Time Electronics (B.V.1.) KBRIZEE/ WERSE 1RIZTEBR 100 100
Limited HEl it Property holding 1 ordinary share of US$1
British Virgin
Islands/
Mainland China
HRREFERATA BB RARBEETER IREBRER 100 100
Same Time Electronics Limited Hong Kong Design and sale of 1,000 7T % 7,000%
electronic products ERERELR®M

VO RERFEAYERNER LHER !

MBRNEEESR

2 S EBERHE

11,0008 T

4 ordinary shares

of HK$1,000 each
and 7,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1,000 each

These companies have no English names and the above names
are translation of Chinese names
Wholly owned foreign enterprise
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HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

20 RKIB LR ZHE (F) 20
(a) BEUWHERIREREADF
R WEREAREBAL - &
BB AEBEIA  REXMNE
EIIARNILE ABTERE -

(b) RBEMERRE  FAAERTE
REER 2 M B R R BB F 4
AYA+=A=+—-H HEE
B AR - AEBFE MK
BEBRBELEWBLRAEEC
Z-ZHF=ZA=t+t—-RALt=
BRAzERRERMEL -

21 HibERBERE 21
ERE—ApEETEEERA2EL
ToHERE -

Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and are regarded as equity in nature by the
Company. Accordingly, the amounts are classified as
equity instruments, which are carried at the amounts paid
and not subsequently remeasured.

(b) All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have
financial accounting year end dated 31 December in
accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is
not coterminous with that of the Group. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group were prepared based
on the management accounts of these subsidiaries for the
twelve months ended 31 March 2010.

Other non-current asset
This represents an unlisted club debenture which is used by

management of the Group.

22 78 22 Inventories
%
Group
2010 2009
BT BT
HK$ HK$
JR 418 Raw materials 56,053,792 42,461,656
EER Work in progress 33,865,039 30,941,763
ER @ Finished goods 30,868,049 36,886,422

BERATEREERAALIATHEE
AR | B9 & %8 3£ 51818,258,78758 7T
ZEEETNE 945,058,617 TT) °

RZEBE-ZFE=ZF=+—-H K&
BEEIABERFHEFTEFTRZ
B K1,604,404B T (Z B2 N F :
5426118 ) - EE SO I ALK
EWERPOIEERKN]I(MEL7) ©

Same Time Holdings Limited

120,786,880 110,289,841

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in “cost of sales” amounting to HK$818,258,787 (2009:
HK$945,058,617).

The Group recognised a loss of HK$1,604,404 (2009:
HK$542,611), in respect of the slow moving and obsolete
inventories for the year ended 31 March 2010. These amounts
have been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (note 7).
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23 B REMEWFR 23 Trade and other receivables
%8 N
Group Company

E SN (f5#b)  Trade receivables (note b)
iT¢ FEAFKREM  Deposits, prepayments and

105,821,602

WK (B ite) other receivables (note ¢) 52,927,195 269,604

158,748,797 269,604

(a) EZREMEKRKMWIRTEEN (a) The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables,

THEMASEN MEKEERE which approximate their fair values, are denominated in
NFEERE : the following currencies:

£
Group

2009

BT

HK$

ES United States dollar 93,450,196

AR® Renminbi 39,403,707

BT Hong Kong dollar 17,787,261

BT EURO 8,081,068

HAth Others 26,565

158,748,797

by EZREVBFZBERZERHZE (b) The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice

BoWwuT date is as follows:

2009

BT

HKS$

0—218 A 0 - 2 months 66,062,395

3-4EA 3 - 4 months 24,422,753

5-618 A8 5 - 6 months 7,653,159

7-818 A 7 — 8 months 4,439,496

8fEl B U £ Over 8 months 3,243,799

105,821,602
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23 EZREMEBUW (&)
(b) (##)

23 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

AEBRTEFNEEHRI0

£120H -

R-ZE-—ZFF=ZA=+—H
5 FE R 5752,065,17058 7T (

=

g
—

T F 149,413,994 1) &K E
BHEIERE WERESR
ZERAEIEHENERTHN
BLEF  WEZESZEBAVIR

(b)

(Continued)
Sales are made to customers with credit terms of 30 to
120 days.

At 31 March 2010, trade receivables of HK$52,065,170
(2009: HK$49,413,994) were past due but not impaired.
These trade receivables relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as
follows:

ROMMT :
2010 2009
B BT
HK$ HK$
0—2{8 R 0 - 2 months 44,265,571 32,943,251
3—4{8A 3 — 4 months 6,229,018 7,591,536
5—618 A 5 — 6 months 560,451 1,649,902
7—818 A 7 — 8 months 288,450 4,827,893
8fE AL Over 8 months 721,680 2,401,412
52,065,170 49,413,994

SHEEXRAREZERNE
HEREB(CEZAF E) o &
EHRFPHNRNBE-—RE
ESEIEF AR EPIS R A F

RNER  EER2,672,7488 T (=
BEENE 1 4,251,6478T) BEE
EMkR - EECIAGE WS

RPNHEMEEMRS

(c)

RZBE-ZBFE=ZA=Z+—8 -

e BARREMERREIE
] 3B B 12 {5 #7 7021,202,24878 7T
(ZEZ N5 :19,368,302/8TT) °

HtbEWR KT EELFEEFER

HSRENEE °

(c)

No provision for impairment of trade receivables was
made for the year (2009: Nil). Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

During the year, bad debts of HK$2,672,748 (2009:
HK$4,251,647) have been directly written off. The amount
has been charged to other operating expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

At 31 March 2010, included in deposits, prepayments and
other receivables was an amount of HK$21,202,248 (2009:
HK$19,368,302) which represents refundable value-added
tax.

Other receivables and deposits do not contain past due or
impaired assets.
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BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

g5 REMEBWR (&)
(d) AEBAERFAEFMERER
MR e

EHREAN EHAROES
RBARE S £ EEERD
AT -

TEMKEE BE
TTEMBTIAREEMRANES
W DERTDEEREERAS
BEERR+-—BARTRESESE
He

RZE-—ZFF=A=+—-8 fiX
HENEHIESANEZRERNEE
£ #970,900,0008 T (ZZEZTNF :
35,400,000/ 7T) °

BEERTER BROIER
KR E
TEBHNZEARITER
70,733,013 B T (ZZZ N F : &)
(FIEE33) HE M AR TUEER
SEERTEEZHFR FHEHNM
20  BHMABTERMBABEER
TEREENHZRER BEIDTAR
WESR HEEFFERH2.25% °

Same Time Holdings Limited

23

24

25

Trade and other receivables (Continued)
(d) The Group and Company do not hold any collateral as

security.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying amount of each class of receivables
mentioned above.

Derivative financial assets/liabilities

The derivative financial instruments represent forward foreign
exchange contracts held for trading, are classified as current
assets or liabilities and are expected to settle at various dates
during the next 12 months.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2010 were
approximately HK$70.9 million (2009: HK$35.4 million) in
aggregate.

Pledged bank deposits/cash at banks and in hand

The Group’s pledged bank deposits amounting to
HK$70,733,013 (2009: Nil) (note 33) as at 31 March 2010
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group as set out in note 29 below. The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant bank borrowings. The deposits are in Renminbi and at
fixed interest rate of 2.25% per annum.
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HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

25 BEEMRITER RITERR
Re (8)
BOFRRAEUTHEMBER

25 Pledged bank deposits/cash at banks and in hand

(Continued)
The cash at banks and in hand are denominated in the

following currencies:

Ex United States dollar
ARY Renminbi

BT Hong Kong dollar
Ht Others

RZE-ZFTF=A=+—-H BHE
ARTER RBRTEIRRESE
BERTERA2ERERAEYN
125,600,000 Tt (ZZEZF N F :
21,200,0005 7T) o FA B A ith B B
2 FRIE S B A b AT SNE B A5 A5

FREE -

HIREERFERRN &S EMAE -

E A

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
#T BT T BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
12,085,199 21,309,621 - -
54,865,021 21,177,774 - -
4,449,591 10,227,755 48,920 94,196
457,873 32,582 - -
71,857,684 52,747,732 48,920 94,196

At 31 March 2010, included in the pledged bank deposits, and
the cash at banks and in hand balances of the Group were
aggregate amounts of approximately HK$125.6 million (2009:
HK$21.2 million) which were kept in Mainland China. The
remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
Mainland China government.

The carrying amount represents the maximum exposure to

credit risk.
26 R 26 Share capital
B & E BT
Number of Amount
Shares HK$
EERA : Authorised:
SREECIBTZZER Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
R-ZZZENEMA—-A" At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 and
—EZNEZA=+—-H 31 March 2010
E—E-ZEHF=HB=1+—H 700,000,000 70,000,000
BRTRAZRE: Issued and fully paid:
BEREEII0BT2EBR Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
R-ZBEENENA-HR At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 and
ZEZNEZA=+—H 31 March 2010
R—ZZE-ZF=A=+—H 56,918,520 5,691,852

Same Time Holdings Limited
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(a)

rEME

BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZF-FF= J=+—HIFEE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

rEEREZBEREZDH

27 Reserves
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

REGZERZEHE - therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
NN (b) Company
BRAEE ERER EH 3
Share Contributed  Accumulated B
premium surplus losses Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
R-ZZZ\EMA-A At 1 April 2008 151,921,671 53,056,017 (4,238,925) 200,738,763
rEEFE Loss for the year - - (108,779) (108,779)
“EEN\ERERE 2008 Final dividend - (1,138,370) - (1,138,370)
RZEZAE=B=+—H  At31 March 2009 151,921,671 51,917,647 (4,347,704) 199,491,614
R-ZEENENA-H At 1 April 2009 151,921,671 51,917,647 (4,347,704) 199,491,614
rEERE Loss for the year - - (278,666) (278,666)
RZE-ZEHE=F=+—H  At31 March 2010 151,921,671 51,917,647 (4,626,370) 199,212,948

REMHEE
RAIZEHBEHMAE -

(i)

SRR

B A ERE37,115,065
Bt JiSame Time
International (B.V.l.)
Limited & H i & 2 &)
R—Ah=F=AMK
BENEEFEHELAR
AEKEZEARM
BIT2ROAEEZE
LR

R-ZZEE=ZFH A
T8 ERABER
EMREBEMBERE
A15,940,952/8 7T ; &

RBE-ZZEAF=
B=+—HLEFER -
KAREREHE
KE-ZFTZENFRHE
% 51,138,370 7t ©

Same Time Holdings Limited

(c)
(i)

Nature and purpose of reserves
The contributed surplus of the Company represents:

the difference in value at 4 March 1992 between
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange for all the issued ordinary
shares of Same Time International (B.V.l.)
Limited and the value of net assets of the
underlying subsidiaries acquired on that date
amounting to HK$37,115,065;

the amount of HK$15,940,952 credited to the
contributed surplus as a result of the capital
reduction and consolidation of shares of the
Company on 16 September 2003; and

the Company make a distribution in respect of
2008 final dividend amounting to HK$1,138,370
out of contributed surplus during the year ended
31 March 2009.
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27 fi#fe ()
(c) HEMHERBW (A
(i) ERBBITRBEARE
—AN—FRAFEH DK
FRE -HEETIERT -
ARARATHEAERR
RERE :

- AQFHEREBERER
TRXNEBER =X

- ARAUREREEE
& E T EREER
ERTROKERAR
BiR2HEM -

EFERBERBRMABEE
EEEAAEE -BER
FRLZFRAIZRER
Mo HRZERBERET
BEDIRIEIRE 2 »

(iif)

EASESESN-Kyadr 38
NEEEDBHE25%Z BB
BREANAZERE BEZE
ZERBREBEEINLNTAREZ

27 Reserves (Continued)

(c)
(ii)

(iif)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. However, the Company shall not declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if:

— the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or

— the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

The legal reserve represents the amount set aside
from the retained profits by a subsidiary incorporated
in Macao in accordance with the Macao Commercial
Code and is not distributable as dividend.

The Macao Commercial Code #377 requires that a
company should set aside a minimum of 25% of the
company’s profit after tax to the legal reserve until the
balance of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to

50% e 50% of the company’s capital.
28 B NHMENT 28 Trade and other payables
%8 N
Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

BT BT BT BT

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BZEMNAR Trade payables 211,725,284 184,683,838 - -
FBREARHEMENT Accruals and other payables 145,102,508 128,035,598 435,928 865,436
356,827,792 312,719,436 435,928 865,436

Same Time Holdings Limited
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28 B 5 REMEMN (E)

EZRHEMENRNREELTIE
WREMN MEKRIERQFERS:

28 Trade and other payables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables, which
approximate their fair value, are denominated in the following

currencies:
&
Group
2010 2009
#E T B
HK$ HK$
AR Renminbi 159,037,210 123,524,688
BT Hong Kong dollar 98,774,586 112,762,369
ES United States dollar 98,897,069 73,934,155
B Japanese Yen 102,071 2,061,174
BT EURO 12,249 376,892
Hith Others 4,607 60,158

ESRNRRBEZZAHZRED T

356,827,792 312,719,436

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is

W as follows:

2010 2009

BT BT

HK$ HK$
0—2f8 R 0 — 2 months 120,859,989 87,193,220
3—4{8 A 3 — 4 months 60,965,798 61,110,740
5—618 A 5 — 6 months 20,851,029 32,354,327
7—-8f8 A 7 — 8 months 5,214,761 3,667,526
8fE A L Over 8 months 3,833,707 358,025

Same Time Holdings Limited

211,725,284 184,683,838
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29 B 29 Borrowings
£H
Group
2010 2009
BT BT
HK$ HK$
*RBEE Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 142,207,054 82,085,036
MERE 2 RIE Obligations under finance leases 23,161,578 54,298,881
165,368,632 136,383,917
REaE Current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 343,131,397 165,585,060
MEHE 2 &IE Obligations under finance leases 50,765,118 54,220,186
393,896,515 219,805,246
BWER Total borrowings 559,265,147 356,189,163
R-ZE-—FF=RF=+—H L&EEH At 31 March 2010, the bank loans of the Group are repayable
ZMITERERBANOT ¢ as follows:
2010 2009
BT BT
HK$ HK$
—FHR Within one year 343,131,397 165,585,060
F= In the second year 56,882,822 35,204,475
E=ZERF In the third to fifth years 85,324,232 46,880,561
485,338,451 247,670,096

BERETEREFm2EEFBHR

M3 3£33 ©

Same Time Holdings Limited

set out in note 33.
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Details of assets pledged to banks to secure bank loans are
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29 EX (&) 29 Borrowings (Continued)

NR-E-—FE=A=+—08  &"&EH At 31 March 2010, the finance lease liabilities of the Group are
ZHEHESBEZERPNOT : repayable as follows:

2010 2009

BT BT

HK$ HK$
—F LR Within one year 52,262,911 58,925,280
EZF In the second year 21,034,148 43,361,683
FZZFLF In the third to fifth years 4,488,000 13,209,444

77,785,059 115,496,407
MEHESBE2RRTIEER Future finance charges on finance lease liabilities (3,858,363) (6,977,340)
MEHEBBEZRE Present value of finance lease liabilities 73,926,696 108,519,067
MEHEAGEZHENT The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:
&
Group

2010 2009

BT BT

HK$ HK$
—FHR Within one year 50,765,118 54,220,186
F= In the second year 19,284,363 41,403,270
F=RFELEF In the third to fifth years 3,877,215 12,895,611

73,926,696 108,519,067

EFNEREEUTY S8 A8 : The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in

the following currencies:

2010 2009
#E T B
HK$ HK$
AR Renminbi 346,624,372 172,948,749
BT Hong Kong dollar 174,710,232 144,606,911
EY United States dollar 37,930,543 38,462,182
BT EURO - 171,321

559,265,147 356,189,163

Same Time Holdings Limited




Annual Report 2009-2010 — 2T A Z =T — T F F

29

30

BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—FTF= J=1—H[IEE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

B (&)
AEEZRITERERBEEEREZ
MERAE-Z=EREF]  ZFHN=X
BERENETAHAEEZRITE
REBMEHERELEEM -

R-ZE—ZFF=A=+—-H &K
EBzRTERKMEAEEERE
BX2BEREFNEMXB2.40%E
6.00%% £1.09%%9.31% (=2 =&
NE 1 2.40%F7.83% % £1.30%F
9.31%) - HIRHBEMEAREE QA FE
HE o

R-E—ZEF=ZA=Z+—HLEFE
A REBERZE TRITMERH
HPFZEWBERE RENEAEEZ
EBLLERESM (AEE 24
EERUARER TEEZR2.2; Kiiii)
EEAKHETEEIRF(ZZE
hWE AEEERZ —HIRITRER
HEPZEGERE REAKEZ
FBELEELR0.85) c R=ZF—
ZEF=ZA=+—HB  A5EZERR
1715 B 58 A #9168,000,0005& jt &
B AT #117,000,000/8 5t » B R
AEEER TRZEEE  WLREKR
BB ENAE39,457,2068 T (ZEZE
L 16,000,000 ) EEEEEE
XPEFIEARDEG - BE-ZF
—ZEFE=ZA=+—HEXREZFHAE
# B2EME2@QZEREE -

IEFE P BE

ERREHT2RANEERREHRE
EREHAEHAEHE UREE
IEFRSHS KB — B B BA R - BIA]
FIEEFTEBEER BET EHELH

29

30

Borrowings (Continued)

The exposure of the Group’s bank loans and finance lease
liabilities to interest-rate changes and the contractual repricing
dates is minimal given the interest rates of the Group’s bank
loans and finance lease liabilities are renewable for the periods
ranging from 1 month to 3 months.

The effective interest rates of the bank loans and the
obligations under finance leases of the Group at 31 March 2010
were ranging from 2.40% to 6.00% per annum and ranging
from 1.09% to 9.31% per annum respectively (2009: ranging
from 2.40% to 7.83% per annum and ranging from 1.30% to
9.31% per annum respectively). The carrying amounts of the
balances approximate their fair values.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, certain of the banking
facilities granted to the Group stipulated that (i) the gearing
ratio of the Group should not be more than 1, (ii) the total
liabilities over total equity of the Group should not be more
than 2.2 and (iii) the assets should not be pledged without
permission (2009: one of the banking facilities granted to
the Group stipulated that the current ratio of the Group
should not be less than 0.85). At 31 March 2010, the Group
breached such covenants. The total banking facilities from
these relevant banks were approximately HK$168 million of
which approximately HK$117 million was utilised as at 31
March 2010. Accordingly, the non-current portion of such bank
loans amounting to HK$39,457,206 (2009: HK$6,000,000)
was reclassified as a current liability in the balance sheet as
at 31 March 2010. Please also refer to note 2(a) “Basis of
preparation” for further detail of changes subsequent to 31
March 2010.

Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there

is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxed levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

97

Same Time Holdings Limited



—EENRE=-F—ZFEF IR Annual Report 2009-2010

BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31 March 2010

30 IEIEFFER (8) 30 Deferred income tax (Continued)
FBIEIEFISHABGZEBHNT The movements in the net deferred income tax liabilities are as
follows:
£H
Group
2010 2009
T BT
HK$ HK$
REA At the beginning of the year 7,180,213 7,434,250
BEgtegd Effect of change in tax rate - (424,814)
EHEAWER (FTA), /X8  (Credited)/charged to consolidated statement of
(B1E£13) comprehensive income (note 13) (530,882) 170,777
RER At the end of the year 6,649,331 7,180,213
EEFFEHREBEARBONEEERE A substantial portion of the deferred income tax liabilities will
REENBBEBT-EAREEE - be settled after more than 12 months from the balance sheet
date.
FERNELEFEHEEREECET (HE The movements in deferred income tax liabilities and assets
BE—EEthEEREEm) 0T : (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:
EIEFIEHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
MERERE
Accelerated tax depreciation
2010 2009
T BT
HK$ HK$
REH At the beginning of the year 12,250,323 8,520,803
BEgtegE Effect of change in tax rate - (486,903)
EHEAWER (FTA), /X8  (Credited)/charged to consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (4,497,834) 4,216,423
RER At the end of the year 7,752,489 12,250,323

Same Time Holdings Limited




Annual Report 2009-2010 — 2T A Z =T — T F F

BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31 March 2010

30 JEIEFREH ()

31

30 Deferred income tax (Continued)

EILEFEHRERE Deferred income tax assets
Hii8

Tax losses

2010 2009

BT BT

HK$ HK$
READ At the beginning of the year (5,070,110) (1,086,553)
REEozgd Effect of change in tax rate = 62,089
EHRAWBEEXSE, (3T A)  Charged/(credited) to consolidated statement of

comprehensive income 3,966,952 (4,045,646)

RER At the end of the year (1,103,158) (5,070,110)

ELEMEHREEDREMEBETBER
mAEBARRERBBAE R MR
FEE o HIBERR - AEBERE
B 1B #973,300,0008 T (ZZEF H
4 84,700,000 jT) o] 45 85 LUIK 88
RRERBUBA - RERBIEEBER
B3E#99,900,0008 T (ZEZENF :
27,900,000 jt) Z E518 » #5 742011
FER2015F (ZEZNF 1 2011FE
2014%F) [@ - Bk X458 o

IESE YA
BEWAREFBIREE EERKEFT
Wz BFME  REBEEREREME
TEHA A R o

31

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The
Group has unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$73.3
million (2009: HK$84.7 million) to carry forward against future
taxable income. Unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$9.9 million (2009: HK$27.9 million) will expire from 2011
to 2015 (2009: from 2011 to 2014). Other tax losses have no
expiry date.

Deferred income
The deferred income represents government grants received

for the construction of a plant in Jiangxi in Mainland China,
which is amortised over the expected useful live of the plant
upon the commencement of the operation.
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BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

HEREREBRWE

(a)

BRETE B A (BB BFIEL
EEBELECRTHRR

BE—FE—-FF= J=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2010

32 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

generated from operations:

(a) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income tax to cash

2010 2009
BT BT
HK$ HK$
BRFTERLAT (B18) /BF  (Loss)/profit before income tax (37,683,956) 35,890,949
HETRTHFERAEZ  Amortisation of leasehold land and land
5 use rights 616,370 403,171
BRHBEELERA 2 Amortisation of deferred income on government
g grants (204,313) (419,105)
AR MBR Bad debts written off 2,672,748 4,251,647
EFERERUERS%L 2 Clawing back of VAT and customs duties
EOKBERFEZ on imported equipment previously waived and
BESERER BRE inventories upon cessation of electronic
ERERMEFR products business 8,555,376 -
wE Depreciation
-REME — Investment property 9,394 9,391
-M¥E -BERZE — Property, plant and equipment 96,158,177 68,064,497
FEWA Interest income (216,269) (158,084)
FMEXZH Interest expenses 21,217,990 16,288,705
M BERRERE Impairment loss on property, plant and
e equipment 21,005,900 -
BERFHEFERE Impairment loss on slow moving and obsolete
g =] inventories 1,604,404 542,611
HENHE BERRE Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and
B () equipment 110,535 (231,398)
ETEHERE Provision for employee redundancy costs 1,138,682 -
HEESEBAI KR Operating profit before working capital
BF changes 114,985,038 124,642,384
BE(Em ED (Increase)/decrease in inventories (12,101,443) 10,283,948
E 5 REMERR (Increase)/decrease in trade and other
(gm) /W receivables (61,240,754) 103,445,347
PTEBMBEEERD Decrease in derivative financial assets 1,426,036 6,772,720
BH R EMESTIE M Increase in trade and other payables 34,414,298 11,655,262
TEBaERY Decrease in derivative financial liabilities (724,467) (5,218,777)
REXBRELECRE Cash generated from operations 76,758,708 251,580,884
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BE B M{3¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31 March 2010

RERTRERME (B

by FEFBRERSH
BE-_Z-—-ZHF=ZRF=+—
BLEE XAEBEEHKE
24,498,072 T (ZEZE N F :
85,584,323/ L) EHMEMRE -

IRITEE
MR-ZB-ZTEFE=ZA=+—H ~&H
2B ITIE B 5 A723,451,43378 T

(ZZEZ N F : 415,708,286 JT) -
Ho B Az &% 5485,338,451
BT (ZZEZFNF 1 247,670,09678
JT) °

BEEEY AEECHETHEER
# 0 £ B IR 1T 15 B %8306,948,9128
T(ZZZTNF 3,882,614 T) 2
BR:

32 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
(Continued)
(b) Major non-cash transactions
For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group had
entered into finance lease arrangements amounting to
HK$24,498,072 (2009: HK$85,584,323) for the purchase
of machinery.

33 Banking facilities
At 31 March 2010, total facilities granted to the Group
amounting to HK$723,451,433 (2009: HK$415,708,286) of
which HK$485,338,451 (2009: HK$247,670,096) were utilised.

Among the total facilities, banking facilities amounting to
HK$306,948,912 (2009: HK$3,882,614) are secured by a legal
charge on the following assets of the Group:

2010 2009

BT BT

HK$ HK$

Y% - BE KR (B7i£17(a)) Property, plant and equipment (note 17(a)) 428,149,585 2,528,287
HELHR LHFERE Leasehold land and land use right (note 18)

(Hz£18) 20,545,674 8,197,209

BHEBRITER (HZ25) Pledged bank deposits (note 25) 70,733,013 -

519,428,272 10,725,496

ZAREE

KRR ZRAREBERERELHE
NAZBERITEEBEEEZER X
1H A723,451,433B T (ZBEZNEF ©
415,708,2868 7t) * BiEEEWEE

FoBAEERRITENR

34 Contingent liabilities
The Company has contingent liabilities relating to corporate
guarantees given in respect of banking facilities which include
trust receipt loans, bills payable and bank loans extended
to certain subsidiaries amounting to HK$723,451,433 (2009:
HK$415,708,286).
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35 EIE 35 Commitments
(a) BEAREIE (a) Capital commitments
£H=
Group
2010 2009
#EIT B
HK$ HK$
EEMERER Contracted but not provided for
WE - #eERBEYE  Plant, machinery and leasehold improvements
£ 64,865,451 112,233,767
REMB LA Investments in subsidiaries 5,967,796 8,817,796
70,833,247 121,051,563
RZB-FTEFE=ZA=+—H &K The Company had no capital commitments at 31 March
NARBELRAE (ZZENF: 2010 (2009: Nil).
;) o
(b) LS AE (b) Commitments under operating leases
() BMEFTHESEHRE X (i) The future aggregate minimum lease payments
REST o HEEBLHE under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
M properties are as follows:
£E
Group
2010 2009
T BT
HK$ HK$
TEB—F Not later than one year 3,313,352 3,511,595
BB—FE Later than one year and not later than five years
THBRE 4,216,004 7,510,687
7,529,356 11,022,282
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HE-ZE—-ZTF= J=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2010

35 7L (&) 35 Commitments (Continued)
(b) REHE ZHIE () (b) Commitments under operating leases (Continued)

(i) RETTHELEHEE X (i) The future aggregate minimum lease rental receivables
REWRz&EKESRE under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
mT properties are as follows:

4]
Group

2010 2009

B B

HK$ HK$

TRB—F Not later than one year 168,000 34,533
HiE—F Later than one year and not later than five years

BEFREBEF 34,533 -

202,533 34,533

(i) RZE—ZFF=A=+— (iii) The Company had no significant operating lease
H: KARRBERNKE commitments at 31 March 2010 (2009: Nil).
HERE(ZZSThE |) -

36 BEALRS 36 Related party transactions
FTEEBEAEMHS Key management compensation
2010 2009
BT B
HK$ HK$
FehEMEHESREF Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 9,020,903 9,180,044
BARRE A Pension costs 115,500 122,400
9,136,403 9,302,444
FTEEBAEBREARARATNES  TH Key management includes directors, chief executive officer,
W ISHE  BEEBRATWE - financial controllers, general managers and company secretary

of the Company.
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BE=ZHA=+—HLHEE
For the year ended 31 March

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
FET FET FET FHExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
E4 Results
IR FE(L (B518) " (Loss)/profit attributable
2R to shareholders (46,698) 23,165 31,056 70,302 (807)
EERBRE Assets and liabilities
HEE Total assets 1,357,463 1,162,758 1,026,795 861,732 765,823
me s Total liabilities (972,423) (733,277) (642,495) (544,239)  (530,295)
HRE Total equity 385,040 429,481 384,300 317,493 235,528
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